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and solutions to help their furry, scaly and finned family ‘asembers live lo edlthy and hapy ?

lives. That's where we come in. At PETSMART, we understand that bond-« M,gégve built a business ™

to nurture that bond. Through every interaction with our customers;we'repilding trusting,
close relationships that can keep them coming back to us throughout theTifetime of their pet.

PETSMART, Inc., is the largest specialty retailer of services and solutions for the lifetime needs of pets. The company
operates more than 650 pet stores in the United States and Canada, as well as a large pet supply catalog business and the
Internet’s leading online provider of pet products and information (www.petsmart.com). PETsMART provides a broad range
of competitively priced pet food and supplies, and offers complete pet training, grooming and adoption services.




FINANCIAL HICHLIGHTS

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands, excepl margins and per-share amounts)
ToTaL RESULTS
NET SALES $2,996,051 $2,695,184 $2,501,012
GROSS MARGIN 304% 29.2% 26.9%
NET [NCOME § 139,549 $ 88,855 $ 39,567
EARNINGS PER SHARE $ 0.95 $ 0.63 $ 0.35
OPERATING CASH FLOW $ 246,433 $ 222,770 $ 189,994
ToTaL DEBT $ 170,702 $ 167,007 $ 341,387
NET PET SERVICES
SALES REVENUE
{in billions) (in millions)
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April 26, 2004

Dear Fellow Stockholders:

In 2003, we made strides in our quest to drive strong,
sustainable results, and we set the foundation
for the next phase of our evolution—building a

powerful brand.

For the year, PETSMART earned $0.95 per share,
compared to $0.63 per share in 2002. Topline sales
grew 11.2 percent year over year, and comparable
store sales increased 7.0 percent. Qur pet services
business continued to surpass expectations, growing
at 25.4 percent for the year. And, we generated
$246.4 million in cash from operations, further
strengthening our balance sheet and our ability

to finance new growth initiatives.

We ended the year with 60 net new stores, giving
us a presence in nearly all of North America’s

top 60 markets. In 2004, we will open 90 net new
stores, adding up to annual square footage growth

of about 12 percent.

We completed reformats of virtually every store in
the chain, changing the shopping experience in
ways that matter to our customer, driving returns

and further differentiating PETSMART from

the competition. The format is flexible and gives

“Once pet parents discover our services,

they do not leave us!”

us the ability to easily adapt to an ever-changing
marketplace. In 2004, we're building on that
format. By the fourth quarter, each of our stores
will have new in-store signage that’s designed
to improve our communications with customers.
And, we're testing other in-store enhancements
to make our stores easier to shop and to build

long-term relationships with our customers.

Pet services continue to be an engine of profitable
growth and give us the opportunity to create
and enhance our relationships with our customers.
And, once pet paré?]ts discover our services,
they do not leave us. Our pet services are three
times more profitable than the core store and
have consistently grown at or above our target
of 20 percent. We expect these growth rates to
continue for at least the next two years. Qur
customers trust us, and by providing high-quality
grooming and training services, we've earned the

right to move into new service adjacencies.







During the year, we expanded the test of the
PETsMART PETsHOTEL™ a unique boarding and
day care concept. We opened six additional
locations inside our larger PETSMART stores and
incorporated one hotel into the construction of
a new store. Based on the results of our small
initial test, we believe the PETsHOTEL concept
is working and we're expanding the test to an

additional 14 or so hotels in 2004.

When it comes to customer relationships, our
associates are our most powerful asset. That's why
we're continuing to make investments in associate
education. We've enhanced our hiring and training
programs to bring in and keep the highest quality
candidates in our stores. In 2004 and beyond, we're
dedicated to ensuring our associates have the tools
they need to provide our customers with superior

service and solutions.

Over the next two years, we'll rollout a customer
relationship marketing program to better meet
our customers’ unique needs. These concepts have
the potential to increase business and reinforce
PETsMART' position as the destination for the

Total Lifetime Care for pets.

“When it comes to customer relationships,

our associates are our most powerful asset.”

In addition to all we've accomplished and all that's
ahead, I'd like to point out the lives saved through
PETsMART Charities® Adoption Centers. Taking

care of pets is who we are and we're committed to
making a difference in the communities we serve.
In 2003, more than 311,000 homeless pets found
families through our in-store adoption centers—

and I'm very proud of that.

Our accomplishments in 2003 were many, and we're
bullish about PETsSMART s ability to build long-term
relationships with our customers—relationships

that translate into continued profitability and returns

for our shareholders.

Sincerely,

Philip L. Francis
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer













A compelling store environment
Qur stores communicate with our
customers through nearly all the senses—
what they see, hear, smell and feel tells
them who we are and how we feel about
pets. And, our stores differentiate the
PETsMART brand from the competition.
They're customer and pet friendly, easy
to shop, clean and designed to enhance
cross-selling between categories. And,
with our products, services and solutions
under one roof, our customers can rely

on us for all their pets’ needs.

Qur stores are customer and pet friendly.

They're organized by category and easy to shop.

I love my dog very much, and am glad that we can enjoy each other without
the stress of a behavioral issue...And, your trainer has been a godsend! Because of .

We hire people with a passion for pets. Our associates
are educated in pet care and have the know-how to
help our customers take the best care of their pets.

Educated associates
provide solutions

Qur associates are committed to providing
our customers with the services and
solutions they need to take the best care
of their pets. We hire people who love
pets, then educate them to really get to
know our customers and understand
their pets' needs. It's this human face of
our brand that builds relationships and

keeps our customers coming back.

We've implemented a new hiring program
to encourage the top talent to come work
for PETsMART. Our selection process

is rigorous and we're committed to only
hiring those with a passion for providing

the best for our customers and their pets.

Pet services drive loyalty
and growth

n 2003, we trained 250,000 dogs and
groomed or bathed 4.4 million dogs. We
hired 1,000 groomers and bathers—and
we've expanded capacity at some salons
to handle the growth. Our services business
continues to outpace expectations and
remains one of our engines of profitable
growth, giving us the leverage we need

to continue to test a services adjacency—

the PETsHOTEL.

The PETsHOTEL concept is more than
just boarding, it's “hoteling” for pets.
It's a unique concept that provides pet
parents with a new level of boarding,
day care and Doggy Day Camp™ The
PETsHOTEL gives us another powerful
dimension to the brand by expanding
our ability to provide Total Lifetime
Care for pets. And, it gives us another
opportunity to drive traffic to other

services, such as grooming.

Our unique mix of pet services differentiates
PETsMART from the competition and drives
repeat trips.

. this fantastic service, I have referred six people to the training program offered
at PETsMART, as well as many others to the store for everyday pet needs.
This experience bas made me a forever-customer. .

An excerpt from an e-mail from C.W., a PETsMART customer







. visit the Bell Road and 7th Avenue store frequently, as I bave 1 turtle, 1 bamster,
1 cat, 2 large fish tanks, 2 hound dogs and 2 children. [ am at this store so much,

I am on a first name basis with the employees. And, because of their great service,
[ would never consider going any place else...

T.H., a PETsMART customer from Phoenix, Arizona

Creating an emactional bond
Through customer relationship marketing,
we're learning to better understand our
customers and better serve the changing
needs of their pets. This powerful program
is designed to build strong relationships
with our customers. And, by providing
our customers with the education they
need to help their pets live long, healthy

and happy lives, we have the opportunity

to drive long-term loyalty to our brand.

]
L

Products, pet services and solutions...otir customers
trust us to help them with all their pets' needs.

We're using advertising to create a
compelling, recognizable brand image
that connects with customers at an
emotional level. Cur television advertising
communicates the bond between pet and
pet parent, while our print ads emphasize

selection and value.

By better understanding our customers’ needs,
we're building bonds that last a lifetime.

And, we've developed in-store events to
drive traffic into the store and to introduce
our customers to our complete offering.
Qur first national Yappy Hour promotion
featured pet services demonstrations,
product offers and socializing—attracting
more than 40,000 pet parents to our

stores in a single evening.

Saving millions of homeless pets
Taking care of pets and doing what'’s
best for them is a responsibility we take
seriously—it's aur inspiration and is at
the heart of our brand. And, it's one reason
our customers pass up the competition

to come to our stores.

Since our inception in 1987, we made the
conscious decision to battle the problem

of pet overpopulation by refusing to sell
cats or dogs. Instead, we donated space

in each of our stores to local shelters and
humane organizations-—where, through
adoption, homeless pets get a second

chance at life.

Over the past decade, PETSMART and
PETsMART Charities, Inc., have raised
more than $31 million ro help animal
rescue and welfare organizations in their
lifesaving work. And our in-store adoption
programs have saved the lives of more

than 1.7 mitlion homeless pets.

More than 1.7 million peis bave found bomes

through PETsSMART Charities Adoption Centers.






Statement of Corperate Respensiviityy

The management of PETSMART is dedicated to ensuring
our high standards of corporate governance are
maintained, including compliance with our established
financial accounting policies and for reporting our results
with objectivity and the highest degree of integrity. The
culture at PETsMART demands integrity and we have
the highest confidence in our people and our underlying
systems of internal controls. Management fully embraces
and understands its responsibility for the integrity and
accuracy of our financial statements.

Here we share a few of the various aspects of our
corporate governance:

¢ Qur Board of Directors has adopted and posted on
our Web site our Corporate Governance Guidelines
and related information.

* Eight of the nine members of the Board of Directors
are independent of PETsMART and our management.

¢ The Lead Director and all members of the board
committees—the Audit Committee, the Compensation
Committee, and the Corporate Governance
Committee—are independent.

* The independent board members regularly meet without
management present.

* The charters for these board committees clearly
establish committee member roles and responsibilities.

» PETsMART has a clear code of business ethics
and policies.

* PETsMART has complaint procedures in place for
both associates and others,

® The internal audit department of PETsMART reviews
key areas of our business and financial processes and
controls, and reports directly to the Audit Committee.

We are committed to improving stockholder value and
fully understand and embrace our oversight responsibilities.
it is a PETsSMART tenet that investors and other users of
our financial statements have confidence the financial
information we provide is timely, complete, relevant, fair,
and accurate. We will continue to strive to strengthen
your confidence by our actions.

Philip L. Francis
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Timothy E. Kullman
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
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PART I

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 274 of
the Securities Act of 1933, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These statements relate to future
events or our future financial performance. We have attempted to identify forward-looking statements by
terminology including “anticipate,” “'believe,”” “can,” “continue,” “could,” “‘estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,”
“plan,” “potential,” * " “should,” or “will”" or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology.

2y s

‘predict,
These statements are only predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors,
including the risks outlined under “Business Risks” contained in Part I of this Annual Report that may cause our
actual results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements to be materially different from any future results,
levels of activity, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.

Although we believe the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot
guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements. Our expectations are as of the date this
Annual Report on Form 10-K is filed, and we do not intend 1o update any of the forward-looking statements after
the date this Annual Report on Form 10-K is filed to conform these statements to actual results, unless required by
law.

Our fiscal year consists of the 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Sunday nearest January 31 of the following year.
Unless otherwise specified, all references in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to years are to fiscal years. The 2003
and 2002 fiscal years were 52-week years, and the 2001 fiscal year was a 53-week year.

Item 1. Business
General

PETsMART was incorporated in Delaware on August 11, 1986, and opened its first two stores in March 1987.
In fiscal 2003, we generated sales of $3.0 billion, making PETsMART the leading provider of products, services, and
solutions for the lifetime needs of pets in North America. We opened 60 net new stores in fiscal 2003 and, as of
February 1, 2004, operated 643 retail stores in North America. Our stores typically range in size from 19,000 to
27,000 square feet. We also reach customers through our direct marketing channels, including PETsMART.com,
the internet’s most popular pet e-commerce site, a separate web site dedicated to equine products, and two major
branded catalogs. Our stores carry a broad and deep selection of high quality pet supplies at everyday low prices. We
offer more than 12,000 distinct items, including nationally recognized brand names, as well as an extensive selection
of private brands across a range of product categories.

We complement our extensive product assortment with a wide selection of value-added pet services, including
grooming and pet training. Virtually all our stores offer complete pet training services and feature pet styling salons
that provide high quality grooming services. Through our strategic relationship with Banfield, The Pet Hospital,
operating under the registered trademark of Banfield, full-service veterinary care is available in approximately 350 of
our stores. We also continue to test the PETSMART PETsHOTEL® boarding and daycamp concept, and, as of
February 1, 2004, we operated nine PETsHOTELs within our retail stores and one stand-alone location.

We have identified a large group of pet owners we call “pet parents,” who are passionately committed to their
pets and consider their pets family members. Our strategy is to attract and keep these customers by becoming the
preferred provider of total lifetime care for pets. As part of this strategy, we focus on driving efficiencies in our
stores, on our processes and our systems, on growing our pet services business, and on delighting our customers by
providing a superior store environment, a superior shopping experience, and superior service. We have improved our
distribution capabilities, implemented new management information systems, focused on developing our pet services
business, and worked to develop a culture of customer service. In addition, we completed the reformatting of our
stores in 2003. Our new store design creates a specialty store environment by organizing store layout by pet species,
placing a greater emphasis on pet services, and eliminating most of the high steel shelving, resuiting in a brighter
and more open store. The new format, combined with our enhanced distribution and information systems
capabilities, has reduced inventories, made the store easier to shop, and allowed our associates to spend more time
serving customers. We believe these strategic initiatives will continue to drive enhanced comparable store sales
growth, profitability, and return on investment.

The Pet Food and Pet Supply Industry

The pet product industry serves a large and growing market. The American Pet Products Manufacturers
Association or APPMA, estimates the 2003 market at approximately $31.0 billion, an increase of approximately
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82% since 1994. Based on the 2003/2004 APPMA National Pet Owners Survey, more than 64 million households in
the United States own a pet. This translates to approximately 78 million cats and 65 million dogs. The APPMA also
estimates 62% of United States households own a pet and 46% of those households own more than one type of pet.

The pet product industry can be divided into the following categories: food, supplies/medicines, vet care, pet
services (such as grooming or boarding), and live animal purchases. The APPMA estimates dog food, cat food, and
treats represent the largest volume categories of pet-related products and in 2003 approximated $13.0 billion or
more than 40% of the market. Many premium pet food brands, which offer higher levels of nutrition than non-
premium brands, are not currently sold through supermarkets, warehouse clubs, and mass merchandisers due to
manufacturers’ restrictions, but are sold primarily through superstores, specialty pet stores, veterinarians, and farm
and feed stores.

Pet supplies and medicine sales account for approximately 25% or $7.6 billion of the market. These sales
consist of items such as dog and cat toys, collars and leashes, cages and habitats, books, vitamins and supplements,
shampoos, flea and tick control, and aquatic supplies. Vet care, pet services, and animal purchases represent
approximately 22%, 8%, and 4%, respectively.

Competition

Based on total sales, we are the largest specialty retailer of pet food, supplies, and services in North America.
The pet food and pet supply retail industry is highly competitive and can be categorized into five different segments:

+ Supermarkets, warechouse clubs, and other mass merchandisers;
+ Specialty pet supply chains and pet supply stores;

« Independent pet stores;

 Catalog retailers; and

 Internet retailers.

We believe the principal competitive factors influencing our business are product selection and quality,
convenience of store locations, store environment, customer service, price, and availability of pet services. Many of
the products we offer are not currently available in grocery stores, warehouse clubs, or other mass merchandisers due
to manufacturers’ restrictions. We believe we compete effectively within our various markets; however, some of our
mass merchandiser competitors are larger in terms of overall sales volume and have access to greater capital.

We are currently the only major specialty pet retailer that markets to customers through stores, catalogs, and
the internet, and we believe this gives us a competitive advantage. In addition, we believe our pet services business,
which grocery stores and mass merchandisers are not likely to duplicate, is a competitive advantage.

Our Strategy
Our strategy is to be the preferred provider for the lifetime needs of pets. Our primary initiatives include:

Add stores in existing multi-store and new single-store markets. Our expansion strategy includes increasing
our share in the top 60 existing multi-store markets, penetrating new single-store markets, and achieving operating
efficiencies and economies of scale in distribution, procurement, marketing, and store operations. During 2003, we
opened 60 net new stores and we expect to open approximately 90 net new stores in 2004, primarily in multi-store
markets. Approximately 40% of those store openings are planned in markets in the Northeast and California where
we are significantly under-represented. We believe there is a potential for at least 1,200 PETsMART stores in North
America. »

Provide the right store format to meet the needs of our customers. As of February 1, 2004, we had completed
the conversion of our store base to our new specialty store format. We believe our reformatted stores, combined with
our other strategic initiatives, contribute to higher comparable store sales growth, profitability, and return on
investment. We continually evaluate our store format to ensure we are meeting the needs and expectations of our
customers, while providing a return on investment to our shareholders. We are currently testing additions to this
reformat, including updated signage and other changes designed to attract new customers and promote lifetime
loyalty.

Expand our pet services business. Based on sales, we are the leading provider of professional grooming and pet
training services. Pet services are an integral part of our strategy, and we are focused on driving profitable growth in
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our services business. We believe services differentiate us from our competitors, drive traffic and repeat visits to our
stores, allow us to forge a strong relationship with our customers, provide cross-selling opportunities, increase
transaction size, and enhance margins. We also continue to test the PETSHOTEL concept, which offers boarding
and daycamp for dogs and cats, 24-hour supervision, an on-call veterinarian, temperature controlled rooms and
suites, and daily specialty treats and play time. In 2002, we launched a test of the PETSHOTEL concept and began
operating two in-store hotels, in addition to the stand-alone location acquired in 1999. In 2003, we expanded the test
to seven additional locations inside our larger stores. We plan to expand the test by about 14 additional in-store
hotels in 2004 and will continue to evaluate the results.

Pet services revenue, which includes pet grooming, pet training, and PETsHOTEL, grew by 25% in 2003 and
29% in both 2002 and 2001. We are confident in our ability to continue to expand the pet services portion of our
business.

Offer superior customer service. Our emphasis on the customer is an on-going cultural shift designed to
provide our customers with an unparalleled shopping experience every time they visit our stores. Using a detailed
curriculum and role playing techniques, we educate store associates to identify customer needs and provide
solutions. We measure their success in every store, and a portion of the annual incentive program for managers, from
the store level to the executive team, is linked to key customer service metrics. By providing pet parents with
expertise and solutions, we believe we are strengthening our relationships with customers, building loyalty, and
enhancing our leading market position.

Differentiate ourselves through effective brand management. We are focused on developing and strengthening
our brand identity. We are creating tools to effectively communicate our unigue value proposition and vision of
providing Total Lifetime Care™ for pets, and to build enduring relationships with our customers. We have
completed the test of a customer loyalty program, using our PetPerks™ savings card, which will roll out beginning in
2004, and recently installed a centralized customer database that allows us to track and analyze customer shopping
patterns. We intend to use this information to customize direct marketing and promotional materials, and to more
effectively communicate with customers across all our channels.

Our Stores

Our stores are generally located in sites co-anchored by strong destination superstores, and typically are in or
near major regional shopping centers. In 2003, we opened a total of 60 net new stores. In addition, we expect to open
approximately 90 net new stores in 2004. We believe there is a potential for a total of at least 1,200 PETsMART
stores in North America.

Distribution

We currently employ a hybrid distribution system including full truckload shipments to individual stores and
the splitting of full truckloads among several closely located stores and distribution centers. Our forward distribution
centers handle products that require rapid replenishment. Our improved distribution network, combined with
improved integrated information systems, drive reduced store inventory and transportation costs, more efficient use
of store labor, improved in-stock positions, and better distribution center productivity. We operate the following
distribution centers:

Square

Location Footage Date Opened Distribution Type
Brockport, New York ...... 392,000 February 1990 Catalog, internet, store and equine

distribution center
Phoenix, Arizona .......... 447,000 May 1996 Distribution center
Ennis, Texas . ............. 230,000 November 1999  Forward distribution center
Columbus, Ohio........... 613,000  September 2000  Distribution center
Gahanna, Ohio . ........... 276,000  October 2000 Forward distribution center
Hagerstown, Maryland .. ... 252,000  October 2000 Forward distribution center
Newnan, Georgia .......... 200,000  April 2001 Forward distribution center
Phoenix, Arizona .......... 178,000  September 2001  Forward distribution center
Reno, Nevada............. 200,000  June 2002 Forward distribution center




Information Systems

In 2003, we completed a three-year project to upgrade and expand telecommunications and wireless features to
our stores. These upgrades are designed to make our stores easier to operate, increase associate efficiency, and
enhance company communications.

During 2003, we also finished a two-year project to implement a software application in our grooming salons
and PETsHOTELS to automate scheduling, check-in, check-out, labor management, and to maintain a database of
customers.

In addition, we implemented a traffic management software application in 2003. This application manages both
the transportation of products coming into PETsMART distribution centers from our suppliers and the transporta-
tion of products from our distribution centers to our stores, which has improved supply chain efficiency.

Finally, we implemented software applications to support various procurement initiatives including demand
planning, forecasting, replenishment, and seasonality in 2003. In addition, we implemented customer relationship
management, direct marketing, and human resources software. We are in the process of implementing pricing
optimization applications, and we anticipate that this software will support continued gross margin growth. We
expect to complete final phases of the price optimization software implementation in 2004 and 2005.

Merchandise

Merchandise, which represented approximately 93.5% percent of our revenues in 2003, 94.3% percent of our
revenues in 2002, and 95.0% percent of our revenues in 2001, generally falls into three main categories:

» Pet Food, Treats, and Litter. We emphasize premium dog and cat foods, many of which are not available in
supermarkets, warehouse clubs, or mass merchandisers. We also offer quality national brands traditionally
found in supermarkets and pet stores. The sale of pet food, treats, and litter comprised approximately 39.7%,
42.3%, and 45.0% of our revenues in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

o Pet Supplies and Other Goods. Our broad assortment of pet supplies includes collars, leashes, health and
beauty aids, shampoos, medication, toys, pet carriers, doghouses, cat furniture, and equestrian supplies. We
also offer a complete line of supplies for fish, birds, and small pets. These products include aquariums, filters,
birdcages, and small pet supplies. In certain stores, we have an equine department that serves trade areas
with high rates of horse ownership. The sale of pet supplies and other non-pet supply goods comprised
approximately 50.7%, 48.7%, and 46.0% of our revenues in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

» Pets. OQur stores feature fresh-water tropical fish and domestically bred birds, reptiles, and small pets. Pets
comprised approximately 3.1%, 3.3%, and 4.0% of our revenues in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

Pet Services

Pet services, which include pet grooming, pet training, and PETsHOTEL, representéd approximately 6.5%,
5.7%, and 5.0% of our revenues in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. We offer full-service grooming and pet
training services in virtually all our stores. We typically allocate an average of 745 square feet per store for high-
quality, full-service grooming, including precision cuts, baths, toenail trimming, and toothbrushing. Our pet stylists
are trained through a 15-week program that teaches exceptional grooming skills using safe and gentle techniques.
Pet training services range from puppy classes to advanced and private courses. Total revenues from pet grooming,
pet training, and boarding services grew approximately 25% from $154.3 million in 2002 to $193.5 million in 2003.

In 2002, we launched a test of the PETSHOTEL concept and began operating two in-store hotels in addition to
the stand-alone location we acquired in 1999. PETsHOTEL provides boarding and daycamp for dogs and cats,
24-hour supervision, an on-call veterinarian, temperature controlled rooms and suites, and daily specialty treats and -
play time. In 2003, we expanded the test to seven additional locations inside our larger stores. We plan to expand the
test by about 14 additional in-store hotels in 2004 and we will continue to evaluate the results.

Veterinary Services

The availability of comprehensive veterinary care further differentiates us and reflects our overall commitment
to pet care. Full-service veterinary hospitals in approximately 350 of our stores offer routine examinations and
vaccinations, dental care, a pharmacy, and routine and complex surgical procedures. Substantially all these hospitals
are operated by Medical Management International, Inc., or MMI, a third-party operator of veterinary hospitals,
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operating under the registered trade name of Banfield, The Pet Hospital. As of February 1, 2004, we owned
approximately 15% of the voting stock and 32% of the combined voting and non-voting stock of MMI
Holdings, Inc., the parent of MMI. We charge MMI licensing fees for the space used by the veterinary hospitals,
and we treat this income as a reduction of the retail stores’ occupancy costs, which is recorded as a component of
cost of sales in our consolidated financial statements.

PETsMART Charities and Adoptions

Through PETsMART Charities, Inc., an independent 501(c)(3) organization, we support the activities of
local humane organizations. Our mission is to improve the quality of life for all companion animals. PETsMART
Charities creates and supports programs that save lives of homeless pets and promote healthy relationships between
people and pets. Moving toward our vision of a lifelong, loving home for every pet, we:

+ Raise awareness of companion animal welfare issues;
« Fund programs to further individual animal welfare organizations’ missions; and
« Facilitate adoptions through in-store programs.

Since 1994, PETsMART Charities has raised and donated more than $31.0 million to animal welfare programs
and, through our in-store adoption programs, has saved the lives of more than 1.7 million pets.

Government Regulation

We are subject to laws governing our relationship with employees, including minimum wage requirements,
overtime, working conditions, and citizenship requirements. There are statutes and regulations in certain states and
Canadian provinces that affect the ownership of veterinary practices, or the operation of veterinary hospitals in retail
stores, that may impact our ability, or MMUI’s ability, to operate veterinary hospitals in certain facilities.

The transportation, handling, and sale of small pets is governed by various federal, state, provincial, and local
regulations. These laws vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and are enforced by the courts and by regulatory
authorities with broad discretion. While we seek to structure our operations to comply with the laws and regulations
of each jurisdiction in which we operate, there can be no assurance that, given varying and uncertain interpretations
of these laws, we would be found to be in compliance in all jurisdictions.

Our facilities and operations are also subject to environmental regulations imposed by federal, state, provincial
and local authorities with respect to generation, handling, storage, transportation, and disposal of waste and
biohazardous materials, and the sale and distribution of products. We may in the future incur liability under
environmental statutes and regulations with respect to sites or other persons. We also could be subject to costs,
including fines or sanctions, and third party claims as a result of violations of, or liabilities under environmental,
health, or safety laws.

Insurance

We maintain standard property and casualty insurance on all of our stores, product liability insurance covering
products and the sale of live pets, self-insured health plans, and worker compensation insurance. Property insurance
covers approximately $948.7 million in buildings and contents, including furniture and fixtures, leasehold improve-
ments, and inventory. Under our casualty and workers compensation insurance policies through January 31, 2004,
we retain the initial risk of loss of $0.25 million for each policy per occurrence. Effective February 1, 2004, we
engaged a new insurance provider. Under our casualty and workers compensation insurance policies with the new
provider, we retain an initial risk of loss of $0.50 million for each policy per occurrence on or subsequent to
February 1, 2004.

Intellectual Property

We have several service marks and trademarks registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office
(or USPTO), including PETsMART, PETsMART.com, PETsHOTEL, Total Lifetime Care, Where Pets Are
Family and All You Need For The Life Of Your Pet, as well as many others. We also own several service mark and
trademark applications that are pending with the USPTO, such as PetPerks, and anticipate filing additional
applications in the future. We also own numerous registered service marks, trademarks, and pending applications in
other countries, including Canada, as well as several trade names, domain names and copyrights for use in our
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business. We regard our intellectual property as having significant value and as important components in our
merchandising and marketing strategies.

Employees

As of February 1, 2004, we employed approximately 26,500 associates, approximately 13,400 of whom were
employed full time. We are not subject to any collective bargaining agreements and have not experienced any work
stoppages. We consider our relationship with our associates to be good. Increases in the federal minimum wage in
recent years have not had a material effect on our business.

Financial Information by Business Segment and Geographic Data

As of February 1, 2004, we had three operating segments: PETsMART North America, which included all
retail stores, PETSMART Direct, which included our equine catalog and equine internet operations; and
PETsMART.com, which included our pet catalog and pet internet operations. We have evaluated our segment
reporting requirements under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 131, “Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” and have determined that the PETsSMART Direct and
PETsMART.com operating segments do not meet the quantitative thresholds for disclosure as reportable operating
segments. No one region or country other than the United States accounted for 10% or more of revenues in 2003.

Net sales in the United States were approximately $2,920.3 million, $2,632.5 million, and $2,438.2 million for
2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Net sales, denominated in US dollars, in Canada were approximately
$75.8 million, $62.7 million, and $62.8 million for 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. The information for long-lived
assets and deferred tax assets is incorporated by reference to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
attached as Exhibit F.

Available Information

We make available free of charge through our internet web-site (www.petsmart.com) our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those
reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material, or furnish it to the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Business Risks

In the normal course of business, our financial position is routinely subjected to a variety of risks, including
market risks associated with store expansion, investments in information systems, international expansion, vendor
reliability, competitive forces, and government regulatory actions. You should carefully consider the risks and
uncertainties described below in connection with those also discussed in Our Stores, Distribution, Information
Systems, Competition, and Government Regulation sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our actual results
could differ materially from projected resulls due to some or all of the factors discussed below.

If we are unable to successfully open new stores or increase sales at our reformatted stoves, our vesults of
operations would be harmed.

Our continued revenue growth depends to a degree on our ability to increase sales at our reformatted stores. We
completed this reformatting program in 2003. There can be no assurance that our reformatted stores will meet
forecasted levels of sales and profitability.

In addition, we expect to open approximately 90 net new stores in 2004. Qur ability to open additional stores is
dependent on various factors including:

» Identifying store sites that offer attractive returns on our investment;
+ Competition for those sites;

« Successfully negotiating with landlords;

+ Timely construction of such stores; and

« Our ability to attract and retain qualified store personnel.
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To the extent we are unable to accomplish any of the above, our ability to open new stores may be harmed. In
addition, there can be no assurance that we will be able to operate our new stores profitably.

New stores may erode sales at existing stores and comparable store sales growth may decrease as stores grow
older.

We currently operate stores in most of the major market areas of the United States and Canada. Our plans for
2004 include opening 90 net new stores, primarily in existing multi-store markets. Approximately 40% of those store
openings are planned in markets in the Northeast and California where we are significantly under-represented. It
has been our experience that opening new stores may attract some customers away from other stores already
operated by us in those markets and diminish their sales. Our comparable store sales increases were 7.0% and 9.6%
for the fiscal years ended February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, respectively. As a result of new store openings in
existing markets, and because older stores will represent an increasing proportion of our store base over time, our
comparable store sales increases may be lower or sales could decrease in future periods.

Our operating margins at new stores may be lower than those of existing stores.

Preopening expenses and lower sales volumes associated with newly opened stores can impact operating
margins. In certain geographic regions, we have experienced lower comparable store sales increases and lower levels
of store contribution compared to results achieved in other regions. In addition, we expect certain operating costs,
particularly those related to occupancy, to be higher than in the past in some newly entered geographic regions. As a
result of a possible slower overall rate of comparable store sales increases or decreases in comparable store sales, and
the impact of these rising costs, our total store contribution and operating margins may be lower in future periods
than they have been in the past.

A disruption or malfunction in the operation of our distribution centers would impact our ability to deliver
merchandise to our stores, which could harm our sales and results of operations.

Our suppliers generally ship our merchandise to one of our distribution centers, which receive and allocate
merchandise to our stores. Any interruption or malfunction in our distribution operations could harm our sales and
the results of our operations. We have two fish distribution centers that are operated by a third-party vendor, and an
interruption or malfunction to their business could harm our sales and results of operations. In such an event, there
can be no assurance that we could contract with another third party to operate the fish distribution centers on
favorable terms, if at all, or that we could successfully operate the fish distribution centers ourselves.

If our information systems fail to perform as designed, our business could be harmed.

The efficient operation of our business is dependent on our information systems. In particular, we rely on our
information systems to effectively manage our sales, warehousing, distribution, merchandise planning and replenish-
ment functions, and to maintain our in-stock positions. Our information systems are centrally located at our
headquarters in Phoenix, Arizona, and we possess offsite redundancy capabilities. The failure of our information
systems to perform as designed could disrupt our business and harm our sales and profitability.

We continue to invest in our information systems. There can be no assurance that the costs of investments in
our information systems will not exceed estimates or that they will be as beneficial as predicted. If we are unable to
realize the benefits of improved systems, our results of operations could be harmed.

A decline in consumers’ discretionary spending could reduce our sales and harm our business.

Our sales depend on consumer spending, which is influenced by factors beyond our control, including general
economic conditions, the availability of discretionary income, weather, consumer confidence, and unemployment
levels. We may experience declines in sales during economic downturns. Any material decline in the amount of
discretionary spending could reduce our sales and harm our business.

Our results may fluctuate as a result of seasonal changes associated with the pet food and pet supply retailing
industry and the timing of controllable expenses, new store openings, and store closures.

Our business is subject to seasonal fluctuation. We typically realize a higher portion of our net sales and
operating profit during the fourth fiscal quarter. As a result of this seasonality, we believe that quarter-to-quarter
comparisons of our operating results are not necessarily meaningful and that these comparisons cannot be relied
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upon as indicators of future performance. In addition, controllable expenses, such as advertising, could fluctuate
from quarter-to-quarter in a fiscal year. Also, sales of certain products and services designed to address pet health
needs are seasonal. Because our stores typically draw customers from a large trade area, sales also may be impacted
by adverse weather or travel conditions, which are more prevalent during certain seasons of the year. Finally, as a
result of our expansion plans, the timing of new store openings and related preopening expenses, the amount of
revenue contributed by new and existing stores, and the timing and estimated obligations of store closures may cause
our quarterly results of operations to fluctuate.

The pet food and pet supply retailing industry is highly competitive, and continued competitive forces may reduce
our sales and profitability.

The pet food and pet supply retailing industry is highly competitive. We compete with supermarkets,
warehouse clubs, and mass merchandisers, many of which are larger and have significantly greater resources than we
have. We also compete with a number of pet supply warehouse or specialty stores, smaller pet store chains, catalog
retailers, internet retailers, and pet stores. The industry has become increasingly competitive due to the entrance of
other specialty retailers into the pet food and pet supply market, some of which have developed store formats similar
to ours, and due to the expansion of pet-related product offerings by certain supermarkets, warehouse clubs, and
mass merchandisers. There can be no assurance we will not face greater competition from these or other retailers in
the future. In particular, if any of our major competitors seek to gain or retain market share by reducing prices, we
would likely reduce our prices in order to remain competitive, which may result in a decrease in our sales and
profitability and require a change in our operating strategies.

The loss of any of our key vendors, a decision by our vendors to make their products available in supermarkets or
through warehouse clubs and mass merchandisers, or the inability of our vendors to provide products in a timely
or cost-effective manner, could harm our business.

We have no long-term supply commitments from our vendors. We buy from several hundred vendors
worldwide and, together, our two largest vendors accounted for approximately 16.2% of our total sales for fiscal
2003. Sales of premium pet food for dogs and cats comprise a significant portion of our revenues. Currently, most
major vendors of premium pet foods do not permit their products to be sold in supermarkets, warehouse clubs, or
through other mass merchandisers. If any premium pet food or pet supply vendors were to make their products
available in supermarkets or through warehouse clubs and mass merchandisers, our business could be harmed. In
addition, if the grocery brands currently available to such retailers were to gain market share at the expense of the
premium brands sold only through specialty pet food and pet supply outlets, our business could be harmed.

We purchase significant amounts of pet supplies from a number of vendors with limited supply capabilities.
There can be no assurance that our current pet supply vendors will be able to accommodate our anticipated needs or
comply with existing or any new regulatory requirements. In addition, we purchase significant amounts of pet
supplies from vendors outside of the United States. There can be no assurance our overseas vendors will be able to
satisfy our requirements including, but not limited to, timeliness of delivery, acceptable product quality, packaging
and labeling requirements. Any inability of our existing vendors to provide products in a timely or cost-effective
manner could harm our business. While we believe our vendor relationships are satisfactory, any vendor could
discontinue selling to us at any time.

We depend on key personnel and may not be able to retain or replace these employees or recruit additional
qualified personnel, which could harm our business.

Our success is largely dependent on the efforts and abilities of our senior executive group. The loss of the
services of one or more of our key executives could adversely impact our financial performance and our ability to
execute our strategies. In addition, our future success will depend on our ability to attract highly skilled store
managers and qualified services personnel such as pet trainers and groomers. There is a high level of competition for
these employees and our ability to operate our stores and expand these services depends on our ability to attract and
retain these personnel. In addition, historically there has been a shortage of qualified veterinarians. If Banfield
cannot attract and retain a sufficient number of veterinarians, Banfield’s ability to provide veterinary services in our
stores, and increase the number of stores in which Banfield provides veterinary services, may be impacted.



Our international operations may result in additional market visks, which may harm our business.

We entered the Canadian market in 1996, and operated 21 stores in Canada as of February 1, 2004. As these
operations grow, they may require greater management and financial resources. International operations require the
integration of personnel with varying cultural and business backgrounds and an understanding of the relevant
differences in the legal and regulatory environments. Our results may be increasingly affected by the risks of our
international activities, including:

» Fluctuations in currency exchange rates;
« Changes in international staffing and employment issues;

« Tariff and other trade barriers;

The burden of complying with foreign laws, including tax laws; and

Political and economic instability and developments.

Our business may be harmed if the operation of vetevinary hospitals at our stores is limited ov fails to continue.

We and MMI, the third party operator of Banfield, The Pet Hospital, are subject to laws governing the
operation of veterinary hospitals. MMI Holdings, Inc., or MMIH, is the parent company of MMI. Statutes and
regulations in various states and Canadian provinces regulating the ownership of veterinary practices, or the
operation of veterinary hospitals in retail stores, may impact our ability and MMU’s ability to operate veterinary
hospitals within our facilities. A determination that we or MMI are in violation of any of these applicable statutes
and regulations could require us or MMI to restructure our operations to comply or render us or MMI unable to
operate veterinary hospitals in a given location. We recorded $10.5 million and $8.3 million from MMI during 2003
and 2002, respectively, as a reduction of the retail stores’ occupancy costs. We record occupancy costs as a
component of cost of sales in our consolidated financial statements. If MMIH or MMI were to experience financial
or other operating difficulties that would force it to limit its operations, or if MMIH were to cease operating the
veterinary hospitals in our stores, our business may be harmed, both directly and due to a decrease in customer
traffic. There can be no assurance that we could contract with another third party to operate the veterinary hospitals
on favorable terms, if at all, or that we could successfully operate the veterinary hospitals ourselves. For a further
discussion of our relationship with MMI, please see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations — Related Party Transactions.”

Our business would be harmed if we were unable to raise any needed additional capital on acceptable terms.

We anticipate that our existing capital resources and cash flows from operations will enable us to maintain our
currently planned operations for the foreseeable future. If, however, we are unable to generate and maintain positive
operating cash flows and operating income in the future, we may need additional funding. We may also choose to
raise additional capital due to market conditions or strategic considerations even if we believe that we have sufficient
funds for our current or future operating plans. Our current credit facility is secured by substantially all of our
personal property assets, our subsidiaries, and certain real property. This could limit our ability to obtain, or obtain
on favorable terms, additional financing and may make more costly additional debt financing outside our credit
facility. If additional capital were needed, our inability to raise capital on favorable terms would harm our business
and financial condition. In addition, to the extent that we raise additional capital through the sale of equity or debt
securities convertible into equity, the issuance of these securities could result in dilution to our stockholders.

A determination that we are in violation of any government vegulations could requive us to restructure our
operations to comply in a given government jurisdiction and could harm our business.

Various state and local regulations govern the transportation, handiing, and sale of small pets. These [aws vary
from state to state and are enforced by the courts and by regulatory authorities with broad discretion. In addition,
the operation of veterinary hospitals are subject to federal, state and local statutes and regulations such as the use,
management, transport, and disposal of medical materials and biohazardous materials. While we seek to structure
our operations to comply with the laws and regulations of each jurisdiction in which we operate, there can be no
assurance that, given varying and uncertain interpretations of these laws, we would be found to be in compliance in
all jurisdictions. A determination that we are in violation of applicable laws could require us to restructure our
operations to comply with such requirements and/or incur fines or sanctions, which could harm our business.
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A determination by tax regulators that our provision for income and other taxes is not adequate may result in a
material impact to our financial position.

We operate in multiple tax jurisdictions and could be subject to audit in these jurisdictions. These audits can
involve complex issues that may require an extended period of time to resolve and may cover multiple years. We
believe an adequate provision for income and other taxes has been made for all years subject to audit. A
determination by tax regulators in these jurisdictions that our provision for taxes is not adequate may result in a
material impact to our financial position.

Our business exposes us to claims that could vesult in adverse publicity, harm to our brand, and a reduction in
our sales.

We are occasionally subject to claims due to the injury or death of a pet in our stores or while under our care in
connection with the pet services we provide. In addition, we sell certain small pets including fish, birds, reptiles, and
small rodents in our stores. Given the large number of small pets we sell, deaths or injuries of these small pets
sometimes occur while they are within our care. As a result, we may be subject to claims that we do not properly
care for these small pets. We may also be subject to claims resulting from the transfer of diseases from pets in our
stores to associates and customers. In addition, from time to time, we have been subject to product liability claims
for some of the products we sell. Any negative publicity or claims relating to any of the foregoing could harm our
reputation and business, as well as expose us to litigation expenses and damages.

Pending legislation, weather, disease, or other factors could disvupt the supply of the small pets and products we
sell, which could harm our reputation and decrease sales.

There is generally a significant amount of legislation pending at the federal, state, provincial and local levels
regarding the handling of pets. This legislation may impair our ability to transport the small pets we sell in our
stores. The small pets we sell in our stores are susceptible to diseases that can quickly decrease or destroy the supply
of these pets. In addition, our supply of products may be negatively impacted by weather, disease, contamination, or

trade barriers. Any disruption in the supply of products to our stores, due to legislation, weather, disease, or any
other factor, could harm our reputation and decrease our sales.

Fluctuations in the stock market, as well as general economic and market conditions, may harm the market
price of our common stock.

Over the last several years, the market price of our common stock has been subject to significant fluctuation.
The market price of our common stock may continue to be subject to significant fluctuations in response to
operating results and other factors including, but not limited to:

« Announcements by analysts regarding their assessment of PETSMART and our prospects;

» Announcements of our financial results, particularly if they differ from investors’ expectations;

+ General economic changes;

+ Actions taken by our competitors, including new product introductions and pricing changes;

» Changes in the strategy and capability of our competitors;

» Our ability to successfully integrate acquisitions and consolidations;

+ The prospects of our industry; and

 Hostilities and acts of terrorism.

In addition, the stock market in recent years has experienced price and volume fluctuations that often have
been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of companies. These fluctuations, as well as general

economic and market conditions, may harm the market price of our common stock.
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We have implemented some anti-takeover provisions, including a stockholder vights plan that may prevent or
delay an acquisition of us that may not be beneficial to our stockholders.

Our restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws include provisions that may delay, defer, or prevent a
change in management or control that our stockholders may not believe is in their best interests. These provisions
include:

« A classified board of directors consisting of three classes;

» The ability of our board of directors to issue without stockholder approval up to 10,000,000 shares of
preferred stock in one or more series with rights, obligations, and preferences determined by the board of
directors;

» No right of stockholders to call special meetings of stockholders;

» No right of stockholders to act by written consent;

+ Certain advance notice procedures for nominating candidates for election to the board of directors; and
» No right to cumulative voting.

In addition, our restated certificate of incorporation requires a 66%:% vote of stockholders to:

+ alter or amend our bylaws;

» remove a director without cause; or

» alter, amend or repeal certain provisions of our restated certificate of incorporation.

In August 1997, our board of directors adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan, commonly referred to as a poison
pill, under which one preferred share purchase right was distributed on August 29, 1997, for each share of common
stock held on that date. We are also subject to the anti-takeover provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General
Corporation Law, and the application of Section 203 could have the effect of delaying or preventing an acquisition of
PETSMART.

Management

Our executive officers and their ages and positions on March 29, 2004, are as follows:

Name Age Position

Philip L. Francis . .. ................ 57 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Robert F. Moran................... 53  President and Chief Operating Officer

Scott A. Crozier ................... 53 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Barbara A. Fitzgerald............... 52 Senior Vice President, Store Operations

Kenneth T. Hall ................... 36 Senior Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer

David L. King..................... 51 Senior Vice President, Chief Information Officer

Timothy E. Kullman ............... 48 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

David K. Lenhardt ................. 34 Senior Vice President, Services, Strategic Planning and
Business Development

Mark D. Mumford ................. 42 Vice President, Controller, and Chief Accounting
Officer

David A. Quinn ................... 45  Senior Vice President, Distribution

Francesca M. Spinelli............... 50 Senior Vice President, People

Anthony N. Truesdale .............. 41 Senior Vice President, Merchandising

Philip L. Francis has been a director of PETSMART since 1989, and Chief Executive Officer since March
1998. In September 1999, he was also named Chairman of the Board, and from 1998 to 2001, he was President.
From 1991 to 1998, he held various positions with Shaw’s Supermarkets, Inc., a subsidiary of J. Sainsbury plc.,
including Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, and President. Prior to that, he held several senior
management positions for Roundy’s Inc., Cardinal Health, and the Jewe] Companies.

Robert F. Moran was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer in December 2001. He joined
PETsMART as President of North American Stores in July 1999, From 1998 to 1999, he was President of
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Toys ‘R’ Us, Ltd., Canada. Prior to 1991, and from 1993 to 1998, for a total of 20 years, he was with Sears, Roebuck
and Company in a variety of financial and merchandising positions, including President and Chief Executive Officer
of Sears de Mexico. He was also Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President of Galerias Preciados of
Madrid, Spain from 1991 through 1993.

Scott A. Crozier joined PETsMART as Senior Vice President and General Counsel in June 1999, and was
appointed Secretary in June 2000. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Crozier was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Westpac Consulting, L.L.C., a real estate services company. From 1987 to 1998, Mr. Crozier served as Vice
President and General Counsel for Phelps Dodge Corporation, a global mining and manufacturing company. Prior
to that, he was Counsel for Talley Industries, Inc., and served as an enforcement attorney with the Securities
Division of the Arizona Corporation Commission and during that time, was also appointed as Special Assistant
Attorney General with the Arizona Attorney General’s Office.

Barbara A. Fitzgerald joined PETsMART as Senior Vice President of Store Operations in September 2000.
Prior to joining PETsMART, during 2000, Ms. Fitzgerald was President of Harmon AutoGlass, a leading provider
of auto glass replacement and repair. From 1997 to 2000, Ms. Fitzgerald served in various positions at
Toys ‘R’ Us, Inc., including, Vice President, General Manager of New York/New Jersey and Vice President of
People Development. Prior to that, Ms. Fitzgerald spent 24 years with Sears, Roebuck and Company in various
capacities, including Vice President and General Manager of Sears Hardware Stores.

Kenneth T. Hall was appointed Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer in January 2003. He joined
PETsMART as Vice President, Strategic Planning and Customer Relationships in October 2000. From 1999 to
2000, Mr. Hall worked as a consultant for Bain & Company, Inc., a global management consulting firm. From 1998
to 1999, he attended Harvard University Graduate School of Business Administration. From 1992 to 1997, Mr. Hall
held various operational and financial positions at EXXON Company, U.S.A.

David L. King joined PETSsMART as Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer in March 2000.
From 1998 to 2000, Mr. King held various positions at JDA Software, Inc., a software and consulting provider for
the retail industry, including Director of Consulting and Director of Sales. From 1994 to 1997, Mr. King served as
Director of Systems and Logistics at Salinas y Rocha, in Mexico City. Prior to that, Mr. King held positions at
Datamerica Corporation, Tymshare, Inc., and Boeing Computer Services, Inc. He was also the President and owner
of two software and information system consulting firms, KingTec International, Inc., and D.L. King &
Associates, Inc.

Timothy E. Kullman joined PETsMART as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in July 2002.
From 2001 to 2002, Mr. Kullman was the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for Hagemeyer
North America Holdings, Inc., part of a global distribution company based in the Netherlands. From 1997 to 2001,
Mr. Kullman served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Genuardi’s Family Markets, Inc., a
regional grocery retailer. From 1994 to 1997, Mr. Kullman served as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary for Delchamps, Inc., a grocery retailer in the southeastern United States. Prior to that, he
held various positions with Farm Fresh, Inc., Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan, and Deloitte Haskins & Sells, the
predecessor to Deloitte & Touche LLP.

David K. Lenhardt joined PETsMART as Senior Vice President of Services, Strategic Planning and Business
Development in October 2000. From 1996 to 2000, Mr. Lenhardt was a manager with Bain & Company, Inc., where
he led consulting teams for retail, technology, and e-commerce clients. Prior to that, he worked in the corporate
finance and Latin American groups of Merrill Lynch & Co.’s investment banking division.

Mark D. Mumford was appointed Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer in March 2003. He
joined PETsMART in August 2001 as Vice President of Finance. From 2000 to 2001, he was a Director in the
Financial Advisory Services group at PriceWaterhouse LLP, the predecessor of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
From 1990 to 2000, Mr. Mumford held various positions at MicroAge, Inc., including Senior Vice President of
Operations, Vice President of Finance, Controller, and Chief Financial Officer and Chief Information Officer of
Pinacor, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of MicroAge, Inc. In April 2000, MicroAge, Inc. filed for protection under
Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. He started his career in public accounting where he worked for
Deloitte & Touche LLP.

David A. Quinn was appointed Senior Vice President of Distribution in January 2002. Mr. Quinn joined
PETsMART as Vice President of Distribution in September 1999. From 1990 to 1999, he was Director of
Distribution and Traffic for the Waccamaw Corporation/Home Place. Prior to that, Mr. Quinn was Divisional
Director of Distribution for Lazarus Department Stores.

12



Francesca M. Spinelli, joined PETSMART as Senior Vice President, People, in September 2003. From 1998 to
2003, she was with Radio Shack Corporation, where she served as Senior Vice President of People. Previously,
Ms. Spinelli was with Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., from 1993 to 1998, where she held the positions of Corporate Vice
President, Organizational Development and Vice President, Human Resources — McLane Company, Inc., a
former division of Wal-Mart. Prior to 1993, Ms. Spinelli has held human resources positions with Dillaashwa,
Hawthorn and Company, P.C., and APS, Inc. In addition, Ms. Spinelli serves on the board of directors of Advance
Auto Parts, Inc.

Anthony N. Truesdale was appointed Senior Vice President of Merchandising in June 2000. Mr. Truesdale
joined PETsMART as Vice President of Hardgoods Merchandising in January 1999. He took on the import
business for PETsMART in August 1999, and in October 1999, he was promoted to Senior Vice President of
Merchandising for Hardgoods and Specialty. In April 2000, he was promoted to Senior Vice President Merchandis-
ing and Logistics. From 1997 to 1999, he served as Senior Manager in Produce for J. Sainsbury, plc., in the United
Kingdom. Prior to that, Mr. Truesdale spent 18 years in various operating and merchandising functions at Shaws
Supermarkets, Inc., a subsidiary of J. Sainsbury plc., in New England before taking the United Kingdom
assignment.

Item 2. Properties

Our stores are generally located in sites co-anchored by strong destination superstores and typically are in or
near major regional shopping centers. The following table summarizes the locations of the stores by country and
state at February 1, 2004:

Number of

Alabama . ... 4
ATIZONA L ottt e 30
AT ANSAS L\ttt e 3
CalifOrnIa . . oot 71
Colorado ... e 27
COMMECHICUL .« o ot 3
D laWaLE . o\ ot e e e

FIOTIAA . ..ottt 40
L€ o) o P 29
Idaho ..o 2
LiN00S .« o o e 30
Indiana . ... e e 14
Lowa L e e

Kansas . .o e

KemtucKy . o o 5
L OUISIaANA . .o e 10
Maryland . ... e 21
MasSaCUS e S . e e 8
MiChigan . ..o 15
MINNESOIA L ottt e e e 13
MIESSISSIPDI « + - o o vttt e et e e e e e e

A 101V (O N P 13
M ONtaANA . ottt

NEDIASKA . . .ot e 3
Neevada. . ..o e e 11
New Hampshire .. ..o e 2
N W JoTSeY « .ttt e 18
NEW MEXICO .« ottt e e e e e e 4
NEW Y OTK o e 18




Number of

North Caroling . ... e e e 22
OO . o e 23
OKlahoma ... e e 8
L ¢ 7~{ o 7
Pennsylvania . ... ... . o e 22
Rhode Island . ... .. e 1
South Caroling . ... ... e e 7
3 00T P 10
1<) T O 58
L0517 Y« 8
253 5 0 1) 3 L 20N

VITZINIA .« oottt e e 22
W ashington . . o 16
West VITgIinIa ... o 1
R4 T o) 1 T P 3
Total LS. SIOTES . . . ottt e 622
Canada. . ... . e 21
Total North America Stores .. ... ... ... . .ttt e 643

We lease substantially all of our stores, retail distribution centers, corporate offices, and certain equipment
under non-cancellable operating leases. The terms of the store leases, described below, generally range from 10 to
25 years and typically allow us to renew for three to five additional five-year terms. Store leases, excluding renewal
options, expire at various dates through 2021. Certain leases require payment of property taxes, utilities, common
area maintenance, and insurance and, if annual sales at certain stores exceed specified amounts, provide for
additional rent. We have paid minimal additional rent, which approximated less than $0.2 million in 2003 and less
than $0.1 million in 2002 and 2001.

Our corporate offices cover approximately 186,000 square feet and the lease for this space expires in 2010. In
January 2004, we signed a five-year lease for an additional 33,000 square feet in another location to meet our
expanding corporate needs. Our distribution centers and respective lease expirations are as follows:

Square Lease
Location Footage Expiration
Ennis, TeXas . oo 230,000 2013
Phoenix, ATiZoOna ... ..ot 447,000 2021
Columbus, Ohio .. ... 613,000 2010
Gahanna, Ohio . . ... 276,000 2010
Hagerstown, Maryland. .. ... .. o 252,000 2005
Newnan, GeOTZIa . ... ...ttt e e e e 200,000 2006
Phoenix, ATIZONA . . . oot e 178,000 2021
Reno, Nevada . .. ... o 200,000 2013

We also own and operate an internet fulfillment, catalog fulfillment, and equine distribution center in
Brockport, New York, which covers approximately 392,000 square feet.

Structured Lease Facilities

We previously entered into lease agreements for certain stores as part of a structured lease financing. The
structured lease financing facilities provided a special purpose entity, not affiliated with us, with the necessary
financing to complete the acquisition and construction of new stores. Once construction was completed, another
special purpose entity, also not affiliated with us, leased the completed stores to us for a four-year term. After the
four-year term expired, we were required to pay the balance of the financing, provide for the sale of the properties to
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a third party, or pay a guaranteed residual amount. The special purpose entity was created specifically to hold the
properties, which consisted of two land parcels and seven stores. It engaged in no other business activity.

In April 2003, we made the decision to purchase the two land parcels, and in June 2003, the seven stores under
the structured leasing facility were sold to a third party by the special purpose entity lessor. We immediately entered
into lease agreements for the seven stores with the third party buyer. Based on the lease terms, the lease agreements
for six of the seven buildings resulted in capital lease treatment under SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.” As a
result, we recognized capital lease assets and related obligations of approximately $10.7 million upon execution of
the lease agreements. One of the buildings and the related land for all seven stores are classified as operating leases.
These transactions have eliminated any arrangements between us and special purpose entities.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in the defense of various legal proceedings that we do not believe are material to our business.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended
February 1, 2004.

PART 1I

item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters

Price Range of Common Stock and Dividend Policy. Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ National
Market under the symbol PETM. The following table indicates the intra-day quarterly high and low price per share
of our common stock. These prices represent quotations among dealers without adjustments for retail mark-ups,
markdowns, or commissions, and may not represent actual transactions.

Dividends
High Low Declared
Fiscal Year Ended February 1, 2004
First Quarter ended May 4, 2003 ....... ... ... i, $15.63  § 9.90 $ —
Second Quarter ended August 3, 2003 ......... ... L 20.50 14.57 —
Third Quarter ended November 2, 2003 . ............. ... ... ....... 26.48 18.01 0.02
Fourth Quarter ended February 1, 2004 ........... ... ... .. ........ 28.80 22.31 0.02
Fiscal Year Ended February 2, 2003
First Quarter ended May 5,2002. . ..., .. .00t $16.25 $ 9.55 § —
Second Quarter ended August 4,2002 ........... . ... oo 18.29 12.15 —
Third Quarter ended November 3, 2002 .......... ... . ... . ..... 21.00 13.26 —
Fourth Quarter ended February 2, 2003 ...... .. ... ... .. ... ... .... 20.00 14.48 —

Dividends. On June 23, 2003, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.02 per share,
which was paid November 21, 2003, to stockholders of record on October 31, 2003. On December 16, 2003, the
Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.02 per share payable on February 20, 2004, to
stockholders of record on January 30, 2004, On March 23, 2004, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash
dividend of $0.03 per share payable on May 21, 2004, to stockholders of record on April 30, 2004. We believe our
ability to generate cash allows us to invest in the growth of the business and, at the same time, distribute a quarterly
dividend. Our credit facility permits us to pay dividends, so long as we are not in default and the payment of
dividends would not result in default. During 2003, we were not in default of our credit facility, which permitted us
to pay dividends.

Holders. On March 29, 2004, there were 5,648 holders of record of our common stock.

Equity Compensation Plan Information. Information regarding our equity compensation plans will be
included in our proxy statement with respect to our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 10, 2004,
under the caption “Equity Compensation Plans” and is incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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Stock Purchase Program. The following table shows for each period in the thirteen weeks ended February 1,
2004, purchases of our common stock and the available funds to purchase additional common stock during fiscal
2003:

Approximate Dollar
) Total Number of Shares Value That May
Total Number Purchased as Publicly Yet Be Purchased

of Shares Average Price Announced Plans Under the Plans or

Period Purchased Paid Per Share or Programs Programs(1)
Balance at November 2, 3003 505,500 $24.48 505,500 $22,625,184
November 3, 2003 to

November 30, 2003 .. ... .. 745,800 $25.48 745,800 $ 3,621,767
December 1, 2003 to

January 4, 2004 .......... 155,000 $23.22 155,000 $ 22,945
January 5, 2004 to

February 1, 2004 ......... — $ — — $  22,945(2)

(1) In April 2000, the Board of Directors approved a plan to purchase our common stock {“Purchase Program”).
In March 2003, the Board of Directors extended the term of the purchase of our common stock for an
additional three years through March 2006, and increased the authorized amount of annual purchases to
$35.0 million. As of February 1, 2004, $0.023 million remained as available funds to purchase additional
common stock under the Purchase Program for fiscal 2003.

(2) The remaining amount expired March 31, 2004. On April 1, 2004, $35.0 million will be available to purchase
common stock under the purchase program for one year.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The information required by this Item is attached at Appendix A.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Except for the historical information contained herein, the following discussion contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could materially differ from those discussed here.
Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in this
section, as well as in the sections entitled Compensation, Distribution, Information Systems, Government Regula-
tion, and Business Risks included in Item 1 Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

Based on our 2003 sales of $3.0 billion, we are the leading provider of products, services, and solutions for the
lifetime needs of pets in North America. As of February 1, 2004, we operated 643 retail stores in North America,
typically ranging in size from 19,000 to 27,000 square feet. We also reach customers through our direct marketing
channels, including PETsMART.com, the internet’s most popular pet e-commerce site, a separate web-site
dedicated to equine products, and two major branded catalogs.

We complement our extensive product assortment with a wide selection of value-added pet services, including
grooming and pet training. Virtually all our stores offer complete pet training services and feature pet styling salons
that provide high quality grooming services. In addition, through our strategic relationship with Banfield, The Pet
Hospital, full-service veterinary care is available in approximately 350 of our stores.

During 2003, we opened 60 net new stores, and remodeled the final group of approximately 145 stores under a
new store format, The new store format eliminates most of the high-steel shelving, organizes consumable and hard
good products by pet species, and also places a stronger visual emphasis on in-store services like pet training,
grooming, adoptions, and veterinary care. We continue to invest in training for our approximately 26,500 associates
as part of our on-going cultural shift with an emphasis on customer service and providing pet solutions. In 2004, we
expect to open approximately 90 new stores, net of store closures.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and
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judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. On an on-going basis, we
evaluate our estimates for reserves for inventory shrinkage, store closures, insurance liabilities and reserves, and
income taxes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Under different assumptions or
conditions, actual results may differ from these estimates. We believe the following critical accounting policies
affect the more significant judgments and estimates we use in preparing our consolidated financial statements.

Inventory Shrinkage Reserves

Our stores perform physical inventories once a year, and in between the physical inventories, the stores perform
cycle counts on certain inventory items. Our forward distribution centers and distribution centers perform cycle
counts encompassing all inventory items every quarter. Therefore, as of a reporting period, there will be stores with
certain inventory items that have not been counted. Due to the holiday season, the majority of the stores do not
perform physical inventories during the last quarter of the fiscal year, but continue to perform cycle counts on
certain inventory items. Therefore, as of each reporting period presented, we estimate the inventory shrinkage
reserve for un-inventoried sales based on a two-year historical trend analysis by store. As of February 1, 2004, and
February 2, 2003, we have reserved approximately $10.1 million and $10.2 million, respectively, for inventory
shrinkage.

Reserve for Closed Stores

We continuously evaluate the performance of our retail stores and periodically clese those that are under-
performing. We establish reserves for future rental payments on closed stores and terminated subleases in the period
the store is closed, in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” These
costs are classified in general and administrative expenses. We calculate the costs for future rental payments
associated with closed stores using the net present value method, at a credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate, over the
remaining life of the lease, net of expected sublease income. Judgment is used to estimate the underlying real estate
market related to the expected sublease income and timing of the sublease start date, and we can make no
assurances that additional charges to these stores will not be required based on the changing real estate environment.

As of February I, 2004, and February 2, 2003, we had, respectively, 19 and 18 stores included in our closed
store reserves, of which 12 and nine were under sublease agreements. We have assumed that as of February 1, 2004,
five additional stores will have sublease income in future periods, which represents a $13.7 million reduction to the
reserve. If these sublease assumptions were extended by a year, the reserve would increase by approximately
$1.3 million. We closed seven stores in fiscal 2003, of which one store closed as scheduled due to lease expiration,
compared to four stores in fiscal 2002. As of February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, the total remaining discounted
gross rents for such closed stores was $55.7 million and $46.5 million, respectively, which was reduced by expected
sublease income of $41.0 million and $37.2 million, respectively, for a net balance of approximately $14.7 million
and $9.3 million, respectively, for closed store reserves.

Insurance Liabilities and Reserves

We maintain standard property and casualty insurance on all our properties and leasehold interests, product
liability insurance that covers products and the sale of live pets, self-insured health plans, and worker compensation
insurance. Property insurance covers approximately $948.7 million in buildings and contents, including furniture and
fixtures, leasehold improvements, and inventory. Under our casualty and workers compensation insurance policies
through January 31, 2004, we retain the initial risk of loss of $0.25 million for each policy per occurrence. Effective
February 1, 2004, we engaged a new insurance provider. Under our casualty and workers compensation insurance
policies with the new provider, we retain an initial risk of loss of $0.5 million for each policy per occurrence on or
subsequent to February 1, 2004. We establish reserves for losses based on independent actuarial estimates of the
amount of loss inherent in that period’s claims, including losses for which claims have been incurred but not
reported. Loss estimates rely on actuarial observations of ultimate loss experience for similar historical events, and
changes in such assumptions could result in an adjustment to the reserves. As of February 1, 2004, and February 2,
2003, we had approximately $27.9 million and $26.5 million, respectively, in reserves related to casualty, self-insured
health plans and workers’ compensation insurance policies.
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Income Taxes

We establish deferred income tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences between the financial reporting
bases and the income tax bases of our assets and liabilities at enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such
assets or liabilities are realized or settled. We record a valuation allowance on the deferred income tax assets to
reduce the total to an amount management believes is more likely than not to be realized. Valuation allowances at
February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, were principally to offset certain deferred income tax assets for operating
and capital loss carryforwards.

Results of Operations

The following table presents the percent to net sales of certain items included in our consolidated statements of
operations:

Fiscal Year Ended
Feb. 1, Feb. 2, Feb. 3,

2004 2003 2002
Statement of Operations Data:
| T T 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales. . ... e 69.6 70.8 73.1
Gross profit. .. ..ot 30.4 29.2 26.9
OPErating EXPEeNSES . . ..o vttt ettt e e et e 18.4 8.5 19.3
General and administrative expenses(1) . ....... ... . i ... 3.8 4.3 4.8
Operating iNCOME . ... .ttt et e et 8.2 6.4 2.8
IRLErest IMCOME ... vttt et 0.1 0.1 0.1
Interest EXPeNSE . . ottt e e (0.7) (0.8) (1.1)
Income before income tax expense and minority interest.................. 7.6 5.7 1.8
Income tax expense(l) ... 2.9 2.4 0.3
Income before minority interest...........ccooviiiiiiiii i 4.7 33 1.5
Minority interest in subsidiary loss ......... . ... i — — 0.1
NEtINCOME .ottt et e e e e 4.7% 3.3% 1.6%

(1) We adopted SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections as of April 2002,” that among other things, rescinded
SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt” as of August 4, 2002, and as a result,
reclassified the gain on early extinguishment of debt of $1.2 million for 2001 as a reduction to general and
administrative expenses. We also reclassified the related income tax expense of $0.5 million for 2001 to income
tax expense.

Fiscal 2003 Compared to Fiscal 2002
Net Sales

Net sales increased $300.9 million, or 11.2%, to $2,996.1 million for 2003, from 2002 sales of $2,695.2 million.
Store sales increased by $310.6 million as a result of 60 additional net new stores and a 7.0% increase in comparable
store sales. Included in store sale, services sales increased by 25.4%, or $39.2 million. The increase in services
revenue, which includes grooming, training, and PETsHOTEL operations, was due primarily to higher volume. The
increases were partially offset by a decrease in direct marketing channel sales of $9.7 million. As of February I,
2004, we operated 643 stores, compared with 583 stores as of February 2, 2003.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased as a percentage of net sales to 30.4% for 2003, from 29.2% for 2002. The increase
primarily reflected lower product cost of goods sold and increased sales of higher margin products during 2003,
compared with 2002. We also continued to leverage expenses in 2003 through lower inventory shrinkage and
occupancy costs as a percentage of sales, compared with 2002.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased slightly as a percentage of net sales to 18.4% for 2003, from 18.5% for 2002. As a
percentage of sales, reductions in equipment rent and operating expenses in the direct marketing channels drove the
decrease for 2003, compared with 2002.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased as a percentage of net sales to 3.8% for 2003, from 4.3% for
2002. In 2002, we recorded $11.4 million related to litigation settlement and costs, which represented 0.4% of sales.
fn 2003, we leveraged payroll and benefits costs as well as decreased our bonus expenses compared to 2002, This
reduction was partially offset by higher expenses associated with closed stores and the payment of a residual value
guarantee on two land parcels. We closed seven stores in fiscal 2003, compared to four stores in fiscal 2002. The
higher expense in 2003 was driven by a timing difference due to the application of SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” The plan to close two of the four stores in 2002, and the related expense
recognition, took place at the end of fiscal 2001. In 2002, we adopted SFAS 146, which requires us to record closed
store expense in the period that the store is actually closed.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased to $19.5 million for 2003, from $20.8 million for 2002. The decrease was primarily
due to the retirement and conversion of our 6% Subordinated Convertible Notes, or the Notes, in the first quarter
of 2002. For 2003, interest expense also included lower capital lease interest due to the expiration of certain capital
lease obligations.

Income Tax Expense

For 2003, the $88.3 million income tax expense represents an effective rate of 38.8%. For 2002, the
$65.0 million income tax expense represents an effective rate of 42.2%. The reduction in the effective tax rate from
2002 to 2003 is primarily due to certain non-deductible losses recognized in 2002 associated with the settlement of
litigation.

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001
Net Sales

Net sales increased $194.2 million, or 7.8%, to $2,695.2 million for 2002, from 2001 sales of $2,501.0 million.
Store sales increased by $240.9 million as a result of 23 additional net stores and a 9.6% increase in comparable store
sales. Fiscal 2001 had 53 weeks compared with 52 weeks in fiscal 2002. Services sales, which are included in store
sales growth, increased by 29.4%, or $35.1 million. The increases were partially offset by a decrease in direct
marketing channel sales of $46.7 million. As of February 2, 2003, we operated 583 stores, compared with 560 stores
as of February 3, 2002. In 2002, we opened 25 new stores, relocated two stores and closed four stores. The increase
in services revenue, which includes grooming, training and our PETsHOTEL operations, was due primarily to
increased traffic. The decrease in revenue from direct marketing channels was from lower pet catalog sales, due to a
decision to reduce circulation and advertising in the first half of 2002, and lower e-commerce sales. Also, in the
fourth quarter of 2001, we sold an ancillary equine catalog to a third party and closed five small neighborhood
PetWise retail stores located in upstate New York, which had been part of the direct marketing channels business in
2001.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased as a percentage of net sales to 29.2% for 2002, from 26.9% for 2001. The increase
primarily reflected lower product cost of goods sold and increased sales of higher margin products during 2002,
compared with 2001. Although we increased our direct marketing gross profit margins due to lower distribution
costs, the reduction in the direct marketing sales volumes caused a slight reduction in gross profit. We also
continued to leverage expenses in 2002 through lower inventory shrinkage and occupancy costs as a percentage of
sales, compared with 2001. The lower distribution costs for our direct marketing channels were primarily a result of
the benefits obtained from their integration in the first half of 2002.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased as a percentage of net sales to 18.5% for 2002, from 19.3% for 2001. As a
percentage of sales, reductions in equipment rent and advertising expense drove the decrease for 2002, compared
with 2001. In 2002, we shifted our focus to using available cash to purchase new equipment and equipment expiring
under lease agreements rather than entering into new equipment lease contracts. The result of this shift in focus is
higher depreciation expense, which partially offset the rent expense reduction. In addition, reductions of operating
expenses in the direct marketing channels contributed to the decrease due primarily to the benefits obtained from
their integration in the first half of 2002. Advertising expenses decreased due primarily to reductions in store and
direct marketing channels advertising in the first half of the year, as well as reductions in catalog distribution during
2002, compared with 2001. An increase in store incentive bonus expenses as a result of our performance in 2002
partially offset the improvements for 2002, compared with 2001.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased as a percentage of net sales to 4.3% for 2002, from 4.8% for
2001. In 2002, we recorded $11.4 million related to litigation settlement and costs, which represented 0.4% of sales.
In 2001, we recorded $6.9 million for impairment charges, $3.7 million in charges related to the reorganization of
subsidiaries, $13.5 million for store closures, $5.0 million related to litigation costs, and $0.7 million for other asset
write downs. We also recorded cash proceeds of $17.0 million associated with a vendor resolution, totaling net
charges of $12.8 million. These charges represented 0.5% of sales. In 2002, the reductions in our direct marketing
channels, due primarily to the benefits obtained from their integration in the first half of 2002, as well as credits
received through a resolution for vendor services, were partially offset by higher bonus accruals related to our
performance for 2002, and higher costs associated with employee benefits and insurance.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased to $20.8 million for 2002, from $27.4 million for 2001. The decrease was primarily
due to the retirement and conversion of the Notes, in the first quarter of 2002. For 2001, interest expense also
included higher bank fees due to the expensing of unamortized fees when we entered into a new credit agreement in
April 2001. The decrease was partially offset by higher interest as a result of additional capital leases entered into in
2002 and 2001.

Equity Loss in PETSMART.com and Minority Interest

In January 2002, we acquired all the remaining shares held by PETsMART.com minority stockholders for
approximately $9.5 million.

Income Tax Expense

For 2002, the $65.0 million income tax expense represents an effective rate of 42.2%. For 2001, the $8.0 million
income tax expense included a $10.3 million tax benefit associated with the June 2001 increase in ownership of
PETsMART.com and a tax expense of $18.3 million for 2001 results, or an effective rate of 40.4%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flow and Balance Sheet Data

Cash provided by operations increased $23.6 million to $246.4 million in 2003, compared with $222.8 million in
2002. The increase was driven by higher net income and depreciation and amortization, and was partially offset by
decreases in changes in assets and liabilities.

Merchandise accounts payable leveraging (the percentage of merchandise inventory financed by vendor credit
terms, i.e., accounts payable divided by merchandise inventory), increased to 41.5% as of February 1, 2004,
compared with 39.7% as of February 2, 2003. Inventory balances were $309.1 million as of February 1, 2004, and
$257.1 million as of February 2, 2003. Average retail store inventory, which represents total ending inventory divided
by the open stores at the end of the period, increased to approximately $0.48 million per store as of February 1,
2004, compared with approximately $0.44 million per store as of February 2, 2003. Increases over the prior year
reflect improved in-stocks at the end of 2003, the increase in the number of store openings in the first quarter of
2004 and the inventory needed to stock them, and the continued increase in sales in existing stores.
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Our primary long-term capital requirements consist of opening new stores, reformatting existing stores, and
expenditures associated with the equipment and computer software in support of our system initiatives. For 2003, we
incurred $172.2 million in capital expenditures, compared with $163.7 million for 2002. The increase in spending
was primarily due to new store growth, completion of the store reformatting initiatives, purchase of a corporate
aircraft, and equipment and computer software in support of our systems initiatives.

In January 2002, we acquired all the remaining shares held by PETsMART.com minority stockholders for
approximately $9.5 million, which was paid during 2002. In June 2001, we purchased 1,020,789 shares of
PETsMART.com’s convertible voting preferred stock from minority shareholders for approximately $0.7 million.

Net cash used in financing activities for 2003 was $0.5 million, which is comprised mainly of $36.0 million in
proceeds from the issuance of common stock as a result of stock option exercises and the employee stock purchase
program, offset by the purchase of Common Stock of $35.0 million. In addition, dividends paid to stockholders
approximated $2.9 million in 2003. Net cash provided by financing activities for 2002 was $66.4 million.

Common Stock and Notes Purchase Program

In April 2000, our Board of Directors approved the purchase of up to $25.0 million of common stock or Notes
annually for each of the next three years. In 2001, we used $6.4 million to purchase our Notes with a face value of
$7.8 million. In February and March 2002, the remaining balance of $173.5 million of Notes was called for
redemption, resulting in the repurchase of Notes for approximately $0.3 million in cash and the conversion of the
remainder into approximately 19,800,000 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $8.75 per share.

In March 2003, the Board of Directors extended the term of the purchase of our common stock for an
additional three years through March 2006, and increased the authorized amount of annual purchases to
$35.0 million. Our policy on the purchase of our common stock is to make market purchases when the price is
advantageous and as cash flow allows, maintaining appropriate liquidity. During 2003, we purchased approximately
1,406,000 shares of our common stock for $35.0 million, at an average price of $24.87 per share.

Common Stock Dividends

On June 23, 2003, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.02 per share that was paid
November 21, 2003, to stockholders of record on October 31, 2003. On December 16, 2003, the Board of Directors
declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.02 per share payable on February 20, 2004, to stockholders of record on
January 30, 2004. We believe our ability to generate cash allows us to invest in the growth of the business and, at the
same time, distribute a quarterly dividend. In 2003, approximately $2.9 million were paid to stockholders.

On March 23, 2004, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.03 per share payable on
May 21, 2004, to stockholders of record on April 30, 2004.

Common Stock Offering

In July 2002, we filed a registration statement on Form S-3 for a public offering of 14,500,000 shares of our
common stock, plus an over-allotment option of 2,175,000 shares. Of these shares, 13,182,584 were offered by
entities affiliated with Carrefour SA, and we offered 1,317,416 shares, plus the shares in the over-allotment option.

On August 5, 2002, we completed the sale of the 1,317,416 shares of common stock for $13.40 per share,
resulting in proceeds, net of underwriting fees, of approximately $16.9 million. On August 12, 2002, the underwriters
exercised the over-allotment option and purchased 2,175,000 additional shares for $13.40 per share, resulting in
proceeds, net of underwriting fees, of approximately $27.8 million. We incurred costs associated with the offering of
approximately $0.8 million.

Operating Capital and Capital Expenditure Requirements

All our stores are leased facilities. We opened 60 net new stores, and reformatted 145 stores in 2003. Each new
store requires capital expenditures of approximately $0.9 million for fixtures, equipment and leasehold improve-
ments, approximately $0.3 million for inventory, and approximately $0.1 million for preopening costs. In the first
year, we expect a new store to generate approximately $3.0 million in sales. We expect new stores to generate
comparable store sales growth in the range of 19% to 21% in year two, 11% to 13% in year three, 7% to 8% in year
four, and 5% to 6% in year five. To convert a store to our new store format costs approximately $0.2 million per store.
Based on our current plan for approximately 90 net new stores during 2004, as well as our planned investment in the
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development of our information systems, we expect capital spending to be approximately $180.0 to $185.0 million
for 2004.

We believe our existing cash and cash equivalents, together with cash flows from operations, borrowing
capacity under our bank credit facility and available lease financing, will provide adequate funds for our foreseeable
working capital needs, planned capital expenditures and debt service obligations. Our ability to fund our operations,
make planned capital expenditures, scheduled debt payments, and refinance indebtedness, depends on our future
operating performance and cash flow, which are subject to prevailing economic conditions and to financial, business
and other factors, some of which are beyond our control.

Any future increases in net sales and net income will depend on the opening of additional stores and the
improved performance of existing stores. In view of the increasing maturity of our store base (an average age of
approximately six years as of February 1, 2004), as well as the planned opening of additional stores in existing
markets, which may diminish sales of existing stores, we anticipate that comparabie store sales increases may be
lower in future periods. As a result of our expansion plans, we anticipate the timing of new store openings, related
preopening costs, and the amount of revenue contributed by new and existing stores may cause our quarterly results
of operations to fluctuate. In addition, because new stores tend to experience higher payroll, advertising, and other
store level expenses as a percentage of sales than mature stores, the impact of new store openings will also contribute
to lower store operating margins until they become established. We charge preopening costs associated with each
new location to expense as the costs are incurred.

Lease and Other Commitments
Operating and Capital Lease Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations, net of estimated sublease income, at February 1,
2004, and the effect that such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods
(in thousands):

Payments Due in Fiscal Year

2005 & 2007 & 2009 and
Contractual Obligation(1) 2004 2006 2008 Beyond Total
Operating lease obligations .......... $195,525  $383,188  $368,619  $1,135,286  $2,082,618
Capital lease obligations(2) ......... 21,755 42,349 43,643 235,132 342,879
Total........ oo i $217,280  $425,537 $412,262  $1,370,418  $2,425,497

(1) At February 1, 2004, we had no long-term debt or purchase obligations.

(2) Includes $172.2 million in interest.

The operating lease payment schedule above is shown net of estimated sublease income. Sublease income for
operating and capital leases is as follows (in thousands):

Sublease Income

2004 . $ 3,697
2005 e 3,810
2006 . o 3,763
200 e e 3,622
2008 L 3,374
Thereafter ........ U U 13,780

$32,046

Letters of Credit

We issue letters of credit for guarantees provided for insurance programs, capital leases and utilities. As of
February 1, 2004, $22.7 million was outstanding under our letters of credit.
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Structured Lease Facilities

We previously entered into lease agreements for certain stores as part of a structured lease financing. The
structured lease financing facilities provided a special purpose entity, not affiliated with us, with the necessary
financing to complete the acquisition and construction of new stores. Once construction was completed, another
special purpose entity, also not affiliated with us, leased the completed stores to us for a four-year term. After the
four-year term expired, we were required to pay the balance of the financing, provide for the sale of the properties to
a third party, or pay a guaranteed residual amount. The special purpose entity was created specifically to hold the
properties, which consisted of two land parcels and seven stores. It engaged in no other business activity.

In April 2003, we made the decision to purchase the two land parcels, and based on appraisals, we recorded a
$1.7 million loss in the consolidated financial statements for 2003. During 2003, we completed this transaction and
no further loss was recorded in the consolidated financial statements. In June 2003, the seven stores under the
structured leasing facility were sold to a third party by the special purpose entity lessor. The buyer of the properties
paid all principal amounts owing on the financing, and we paid all accrued interest of approximately $2.2 million.
We recorded no material gain or loss in this transaction. We immediately entered into lease agreements for the
seven stores with the third party buyer. Based on the lease terms, the lease agreements for six of the seven buildings
resulted in capital lease treatment under SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.” As a result, we recognized capital
lease assets and related obligations of approximately $10.7 million upon execution of the lease agreements. One of
the buildings and the related land for all seven stores are classified as operating leases. These transactions have
eliminated any arrangements between special purpose entities and us.

Related Party Transactions

We have an investment in MMI Holdings, Inc., or MMIH, a provider of veterinary and other pet-related
services. MMIH, through a wholly owned subsidiary, Medical Management International, Inc., or MMI, operates
full-service veterinary hospitals and wellness hospitals inside over half our stores, under the name Banfield, The Pet
Hospital. Philip L. Francis, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and Robert F. Moran, our President and
Chief Operating Officer, are members of the board of directors of MMIH. Our investment consists of common and
convertible preferred stock. As of February 1, 2004, we owned approximately 15% of the voting stock, and
approximately 32% of the combined voting and non-voting stock of MMIH. We charge MMI licensing fees for the
space used by the veterinary hospitals, and we treat this income as a reduction of the retail stores’ occupancy costs.
We record occupancy costs as a component of cost of sales in our consolidated financial statements. Licensing fees
are determined by fixed costs per square foot, adjusted for the number of days the hospitals are open and sales
volumes achieved. We recognized licensing fees of approximately $10.5 million, $8.3 million, and $6.7 million
during 2003, 2002, and 2001 respectively. Licensing fees receivable from MMI totaled $4.4 million and $2.9 million
at February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, respectively, and were included in receivables in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

Credit Facility

At our option, on November 21, 2003, we amended our credit facility to reduce the available commitment to
$125.0 million, extend the maturity by two years to April 30, 2008, and amended certain covenants. The credit
facility permits us to pay dividends, so long as we are not in default or the payment of dividends would not result in
default. The credit facility is secured by substantially all our personal property assets and certain real property. We
pay a fee to the lenders each quarter at an annual rate of 0.25% of the unused amount of the credit facility. As of
February 1, 2004, we had no borrowings outstanding under the credit facility; however, we issue letters of credit for
guarantees provided for insurance programs, capital lease agreements, and utilities.

Seasonality and Inflation

Our business is subject to some seasonal fluctuations and we typically realize a higher portion of our net sales
and operating profits during the fourth quarter. As a result of this seasonality, we believe that quarter-to-quarter
comparisons of our operating results are not necessarily meaningful and that these comparisons cannot be relied
upon as indicators of future performance. In addition, sales of certain products and services designed to address pet
health needs are seasonal. Because our stores typically draw customers from a large trade area, sales may also be
impacted by adverse weather or travel conditions, which are more prevalent during certain seasons of the year.
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Our results of operations and financial position are presented based upon historical cost. Although we cannot
accurately anticipate the effect of inflation on our operations, we do not believe inflation is likely to materially harm
our net sales or results of operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The FASB issued FASB Interpretation, or FIN, 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” an
interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” on January 17, 2003.
FIN 46 requires that an entity holding a majority of the “variable interest” of a “variable interest entity” must
consolidate the operations of that variable interest entity of which it is the primary beneficiary. In 2003, we
purchased two properties from the structured lease financing facility, and based on current appraisals, we recorded a
$1.7 million loss in the consolidated financial statements. Subsequent to this purchase and also in 2003, the
structured lease financing facility was liquidated and the remaining seven stores were leased by the Company.
FIN 46 was effective for us on August 4, 2003. With the liquidation of our special purpose entity during 2003,
FIN 46 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2003, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, reached a consensus on Issue 02-16,
“Accounting by a Customer (including a Reseller) for Cash Consideration Received from a Vendor.” The transition
provisions apply prospectively to arrangements with vendors entered into or modified after December 31, 2002, do
not allow for prior period reclassification, and require companies to account for all amounts received from vendors as
a reduction of the cost of the products purchased unless certain criteria are met that allow companies to account for
vendor funding as a reduction of related selling, general, and administrative expenses. During 2003 and 2002, we
recorded approximately $10.9 million and $11.0 million, respectively, for cooperative promotional income. We
adopted the provisions of EITF 02-16 for vendor contracts entered into or modified subsequent to December 31,
2002, and the adoption did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In November 2003, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force reached a consensus on Issue 03-10, “Application
of Issue No. 02-16 by Resellers to Sales Incentives Offered to Consumers by Manufacturers.” Under EITF 03-10,
any cash consideration a company receives from a vendor as part of a sales incentive arrangement must be recorded
in the income statement as an offset to cost of sales, and cannot be recorded as revenue, unless the company meets
certain criteria. EITF 03-10 is effective for new arrangements, including modifications to existing arrangements,
entered into fiscal periods beginning after November 25, 2003. We are currently assessing the impact, if any,
regarding the adoption of EITF 03-10.

Other Information

Consistent with Section 10A (i) (2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as added by Section 202 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, PETsMART is responsible for listing the non-audit services approved in the fourth
quarter of 2003 by the PETsMART Audit Committee to be performed by Deloitte & Touche LLP, our independent
auditor. Non-audit services are defined in the law as services other than those provided in connection with an audit
or a review of the financial statements of PETSMART. The non-audit services approved by the Audit Committee in
the fourth quarter ended February 1, 2003 were for information systems audit support services. The service has been
approved in accordance with a pre-approval from the Audit Committee or the Committee’s Chairman pursuant to
delegated authority by the Committee.

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks

We are subject to certain market risks arising from transactions in the normal course of our business. Such risk
is principally associated with interest rate and foreign exchange fluctuations, as well as changes in our credit
standing. In addition, a market risk exists associated with the current fuel price. We are assessing the impact the
fuel prices might have on our gross margins, as well as the possibility of increasing retail prices in certain products to
minimize the impact on our results of operations and financial position.

Interest Rate Risk

We use a revolving line of credit and short-term bank borrowings to support seasonal working capital needs and
to finance capital requirements of the business. There were no borrowings during 2003. Borrowings under the
revolving line of credit bear interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 0% to 0.50% or LIBOR plus 2.00% to 2.50%, at our
option.
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Foreign Currency Risk

Our Canadian subsidiary operates 21 stores and uses the Canadian dollar as the functional currency and the
United States dollar as the reporting currency. We have certain exposures to foreign currency risk. However, we
believe that such exposure does not present a significant risk due to a relatively limited number of transactions and
accounts denominated in foreign currency. Approximately $75.8 million or 2.5% of our revenues for 2003, were
denominated in the Canadian dollar. Transaction gains and losses on United States dollar denominated transactions
are recorded within general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations, and were
$0.4 millicn in exchange loss for 2003.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this Item is attached as Appendix F.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 9a. Controls and Procedures

Based on their evaluation as of February 1, 2004, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15(d)-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) were sufficiently effective to ensure that the information required to
be disclosed by us in this Annual Report on Form 10-K was recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within
the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and Form 10-K. There were no
changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during the fourth quarter ended February 1, 2004, that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues, if any, within a company
have been detected.

PART HI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item with respect to directors is incorporated by reference from the
information under the caption “Election of Directors’ to be contained in our proxy statement in connection with the
solicitation of proxies for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 10, 2004.

The required information concerning our executive officers is contained in Item 1, Part 1 of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

All PETsMART associates must act ethically at all times and in accordance with the policies comprising the
PETsMART Code of Business Ethics and Policies. We require full compliance with this policy and all designated
associates including our Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer, Principal Accounting Officer and
such other individuals performing similar positions, have signed a certificate acknowledging that they have read,
understand, and will continue to comply with the policy. The policy is published and any amendments or waivers
thereto will be published in the Corporate Governance section of the PETSMART website located at
WWW. Detm.com.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions
“Compensation of Executive Officers,” “Stock Option Grants, Exercises and Plans,” and “Employment and
Severance Arrangements” to be contained in our proxy statement.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plans” to be
contained in our proxy statement.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” to be contained in our proxy statement.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under caption “Fees to
Independent Auditors for Fiscal 2003 and 2002 to included in our proxy statement.

PART 1V

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

1. Financial Statements: The financial statements of PETsMART are included as Appendix F of this Annual
Report. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule on page F-1.

2. Financial Statement Schedule: The financial statement schedule required under the related instructions is
included as Appendix F of this Annual Report. See index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial
Statement Schedule on page F-1.

3. Exhibits: The exhibits which are filed with this Annual Report or which are incorporated herein by
reference are set forth in the Exhibit Index on page E-1.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

PETsMART furnished a current Report on Form 8-K, dated November 20, 2003, on November 20, 2003,
reporting under “Item 12. Disclosure of Results of Operations and Financial Condition,” its results for the thirteen
weeks ended November 2, 2003.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on April 12, 2004,

PETSMART, INC.

By: /s/ PHILIP L. FRANCIS

Philip L. Francis
Chairman of the Board of Directors,
and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Philip L. Francis and Timothy E. Kullman and each of them, as his or her true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name,
place, and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and
to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents and each of them, full power and authority
to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith as fully to
all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause
to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/  PHILIP L. FRANCIS Chairman of the Board of Directors, and April 12, 2004
Philip L. Francis Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ TiMOTHY E. KULLMAN Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer  April 12, 2004
Timothy E. Kullman (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ MARK D. MUMFORD Vice President, Controller and Chief April 12, 2004
Mark D. Mumford Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting
Officer)
/s/ LAWRENCE A. DEL SANTO Director April 12, 2004

Lawrence A. Del Santo

/s/ RiIcHARD K. LOCHRIDGE Director April 12, 2004
Richard K. Lochridge

/s/  BARBARA A. MUNDER Director April 12, 2004
Barbara A. Munder

/s/ THomAs D. O'MALLEY Director April 12, 2004
Thomas D. O’Malley
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Signature

/s/  Nancy J. PEpoOT

Nancy J. Pedot

/s/  WALTER J. SALMON

Walter J. Salmon

/s/ THomAs G. STEMBERG

Thomas G. Stemberg
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Exhibit

Number
3.1(1)
3.2(2)
33(3)
3.4(4)
4.1
4.2(5)
4.3(6)

10.1(7)
10.24(8)
10.3+(9)
10.41(10)
10.5+(11)
10.6(12)
10.7*

10.9(13)
10.10%4

APPENDIX E

PETsMART, INC.
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Document

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of PETSMART.

Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of PETsMART.

Form of Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of PETsMART.
Bylaws of PETsMART, as amended.

Reference is made to Exhibit 3.1 through 3.4.

Form of Stock Certificate.

Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 1997, between PETsMART and Norwest Bank Minnesota,
N.A.

Form of Indemnity Agreement between PETsMART and its Directors and Officers.
2003 Equity Incentive Plan.
1996 Non-Employee Directors’ Equity Plan, as amended.

1997 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended.
2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
Form of Restricted Stock Bonuses.

Credit Agreement among PETsMART, certain lenders, and Administrative Lender, dated as of
November 21, 2003, as Amended and Restated.

Form of Promissory Note with executive officers.
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended.

10.111(14) Executive Short Term Incentive Plan, as amended.

10.12(15)
10.13(16)
10.14(17)

10.15(18)
10.16(19)
23.1%
31.1%
31.0%
32.1(20)

32.2(20)

Employment Agreement, between PETsMART and Philip L. Francis, Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer.

Employment Agreement, between PETsMART and Robert F. Moran, President and Chief Operating
Officer.

Offer Letter, between PETsMART and Timothy E. Kullman, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer.

Form of Offer Letter between PETsSMART and executive officers.

Executive Change in Control and Severance Benefit Plan.

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Auditors.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Filed herewith.
1 Compensation plans or arrangements in which directors or executive officers are eligible to participate.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3(i) to PETsMART’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 33-63912), filed on June 4, 1993, as amended.

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to PETsMART’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 0-21888),
filed September 10, 1996.

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to PETsMART’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 0-21888),
filed on August 21, 1997.

29




(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

%)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(13)

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to PETsMART’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 1, 2004 (File No. 0-21888), filed on April 18, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to PETsMART’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 33-63912), filed on June 4, 1993, as amended.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to PETsMART’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 0-21888),
filed on August 21, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to PETsMART’s Registration Statement on Form S-I
(File No. 33-63912), filed on June 4, 1993, as amended.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to PETSMART’s Proxy Statement (File No. 0-21888), filed on
May 12, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to PETSMART’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(File No. 333-58605), filed on July 7, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to PETsMART’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 1, 2004 (File No. 0-21888), filed on April 18, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to PETsMART’s Registration Statement on Form S-§
(File No. 333-92160), filed on July 10, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to PETsMART’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(File No. 333-52417), filed on May 12, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to PETSMART’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 3, 2002 (File No. 0-21888), filed on April 15, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to PETSMART’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 1, 2004 (File No. 0-21888), filed on April 18, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to PETsMART’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 1, 2004 (File No. 0-21888), filed on April 18, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to PETsMART’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 1, 2004 (File No. 0-21888), filed on April 18, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to PETsMART’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the thirteen
weeks ended August 4, 2002 (File No. 0-21888), filed on September 18, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to PETsMART’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 1, 2004 (File No. 0-21888), filed on April 18, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to PETsMART’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 1, 2004 (File No. 0-21888), filed on April 18, 2003.

The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 and Exhibit 32.2 accompany this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
are not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are not to be incorporated by
reference into any filing of PETsMART, Inc., under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors and Stockholders
PETsMART, Inc.
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of PETsMART, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of February 1, 2004 and February 2, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended February 1, 2004. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of PETSMART, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 1, 2004 and February 2, 2003, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended February 1, 2004, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

DerLoiTTE & ToucHE LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
April 9, 2004
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

February 1,
2004

February 2,
2003

(In thousands,
except par value)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ....... ... . ... . . . $ 327,810 $ 253,936
Receivables, net .. ... . 16,628 9,657
Merchandise inventories . ......... ... e 309,140 257,090
Deferred inCOME taXeS . ..ot vt 2,876 8,809
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .............. oo vttt 31,198 31,656
Total CUITENt aSSELS . .. ..ottt e 687,652 561,148
Property and equipment, net ... ... 577,182 489,947
InVeSIMIENTS . ..o e 33,694 33,694
Deferred inCome taxes ... ...t 47,463 46,061
GoodWill, MEt .. o 14,422 14,422
Intangible assets, net. . ... ... . . . ... 2,621 2,838
(@ 18513 o 111 v J R PN 13,661 10,746
Total aSSetS . . ..ot $1,376,695  $1,158,856
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Accounts payable and bank overdraft ....... ... ... ... . $ 128,303 $§ 102,169
Accrued payroll, bonus, and employee benefits ...... .. ... ... L 73,058 70,256
Accrued OCCUPANCY EXPEMSES . . o\ vt vttt ettt et et et e e e 27,971 24,285
Current maturities of capital lease obligations .. .............. ... ... ... 4,964 7,564
Other current labilities . . . .. .. o 105,518 84,190
Total current Habilities .. ... ... . . i 339,814 288,464
Capital lease obligations .. ......... .. 165,738 159,443
Deferred rents and other noncurrent liabilities. .. ... ... . o .. 31,988 29,750
Total liabilities . ... ... . e 537,540 477,657
Commitments and contingencies Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock; $.0001 par value; 10,000 shares authorized, none issued and
OUtStANAINg . . ..o — —
Common stock; $.0001 par value; 250,000 shares authorized, 144,813 and
139,914 shares issued ... ... .. 14 14
Additional paid-in capital ... ... ... .. 705,265 642,767
Deferred compensation .. ... ... .. . i (6,658) (19)
Retained earnings ........ .. i 174,053 40,239
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) .............. ... .. ... ... 1,458 (1,802)
Less: treasury stock, at cost, 1,406 and O shares ........... ... ... ... .. ... ... {(34,977) —
Total stockholders’ equity .. ...t 839,155 681,199
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ......... ... ..o ... $1,376,695  $1,158,856

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)

Nt SAlES . oot $2,996,051  $2,695,184  $2,501,012
Cost of Ssales . ..o e 2,086,117 1,907,144 1,827,527

Gross Profit. . . ..o 909,934 788,040 673,485
OPErating EXPEMSES .« .o vt vttt ettt e e 551,388 498,343 483,657
General and administrative exXpenses. .. ........couiniineinnnenn... 114,618 117,851 119,156

Operating iMCOIME . . ...ttt ittt et 243,928 171,846 70,672
Interest INCOME . ... it e 3,358 2.803 2,007
INterest BXPeNSE . . oo\ttt e (19,454) (20,836) (27,436)

Income before income tax expense, and minority interest .......... 227,832 153,813 45,243
INCOME tAX EXPEISE . o . ot ittt et et et et e e 88,283 64,958 7972

Income before minority interest. .. ......... ... . ... 139,549 88,855 37,271
Minority interest in subsidiary loss ......... ... ... .. o o L — — 2,296

Net INCOME. . . .ttt e e e 139,549 88,855 39,567
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax expense

(benefit):

Foreign currency translation adjustments ................. ... .... 3,260 1,003 (357)

Comprehensive Income ... ... i e $ 142809 $§ 89858 § 39,210
Basic earnings per share ...... ... . . .. i $ 099 § N.66 § 0.35
Diluted earnings per share .......... ..ottt $ 095 § 0.63 S 0.35

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Retained Other Notes
___ Shares Additional Deferred Earnings/ Comprehensive Receivable
g
Common Treasury Common Paid-In Compen- (Accumulate Income from Treasury
Stock Stock Stock Capital sation Deficit) (Loss) Officers Stock Total
Amounts (In thousands, except per share data)
BALANCE AT JANUARY 28,2001 ...... 117,753 (6,350) 12 403,758 (663) (88,183) (2,448) (4,319) (27,578) 280,579
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options . .. 172 172
Issuance of common stock under stock

incentive plans ......... ... . ...l 1,231 5,909 5,909
Amortization of deferred compensation, net of

award reacquisitions and adjustments .. ... (25) (263) 367 104
Other comprehensive loss, net of income tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments . . (357) (357)
Accrued interest on notes receivable issued to

officers ... (511) (511)
Repayments of notes receivable issued to

officers ... 343 343
Retirement of treasury stock............... (6,350) 6,350 ) (27,577) 27,578 —
Netincome ... .......cocoviii i . __ 39,567 39,567
BALANCE AT FEBRUARY 3,2002 ...... 112,609 — 11 381,999 (296) (48,616) (2,805) (4,487) — 325,806
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options . 14,112 14,112
Issuance of common stock under stock

incentive plans . .......... ... .. .l 4,037 1 27,188 27,189
Issuance of common stock under an offering 3,492 43,925 43925
Conversion of 6¥:% Subordinated Convertible

Notes to common stock. . ............... 19,797 2 174,730 174,732
Amortization of deferred compensation, net of

award reacquisitions and adjustments .. ... 2y (351) 277 (74)
Compensation expense related to options held

by non-employees. ...l 1,164 1,164
Other comprehensive income, net of income

tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments . . 1,003 1,003
Accrued interest on notes receivable issued to

officers and notes issued to officers ....... 71L7) (717)
Repayments of notes receivable issued to

officers . ... 5,204 5,204
Net iNCOMe . ... .o it - __ 88,855 88,855
BALANCE AT FEBRUARY 2, 2003 ...... 139,914 — 14 642,767 (19) 40,239 (1,802) — — 681,199
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options . .. 17,743 17,743
Issuance of common stock under stock

incentive plans ....... ... ... .. ...l 4,344 36,007 36,007
Amortization of deferred compensation, net of

award reacquisitions and adjustments .. ... 555 8,748 (6,639) 2,109
Cash Dividends ($0.02 per share) .......... (5,735) (5,735)
Other comprehensive income, net of income

lax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments .. 3,260 3,260
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost.......... (1,406) (34,977) (34,977)
Netincome.............. . iiiiiiiiinns _ 139,549 139,549
BALANCE AT FEBRUARY 1, 2004 ...... 144813 1,406) $14 $705,265  $(6,658) $174,053 $ 1,458 $  —  $(34977) $839,135

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, February 2, February 3,
2004 2003 2002

(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net iICOME . oo vttt e e e $ 139,549 $§ 88,855 $ 39,567
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by :
operating activities —

Depreciation and amortization. . .......... ... ..... . ...... 95,948 77,268 58,709
Loss on disposal of property and equipment ................ 4,655 4,377 5,796
Elimination of goodwill in PETSMART.com................ — — 8,575
Impairment charge and write-down of sub51d1ary assets ...... — — 9,747
Minority interest in subsidiary........ ...« ... il — (2,296)
Capital assets received through vendor settlement ........... (1,288) (3, 442) —
Gain on early extinguishment of debt...................... — (1,190)
Compensation expense related to non-employee options ... ... — 1, 164 —
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options.................. 17,743 14,112 172
Deferred income taxes ...........c. i i 4,532 (15,941) (26,556)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net. . ... (6,646) 13,654 13,525
Merchandise InvVentories . .. .....oov i (50,504) 14,609 48,651
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . ................. 1,021 (2,250) (12,134)
Other nONCUITENt @SSt . .\ oo vttt eie e (2,977) 1,844 (242)
Accounts payable ... ... e 16,400 5,299 (37,651)
Accrued payroll, bonus, and employee benefits.............. 2,858 18,433 26,251
Accrued OCCUPANCY EXPENSES . . o v v vttt e ie et nen e 3,723 (2,584) 6,643
Other current liabilities ... ........ ... . ... ... ... ... .... 17,305 7,052 48,397
Deferred rents and other noncurrent liabilities .............. 4,114 320 4,030
Net cash provided by operating activities. . ................... 246,433 222,770 189,994
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment............... ... .... (172,227)  (163,698)  (105,104)
Investment in equity holdings ......... . ... . ... . ... ... — (9,500) (741)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment ............... 315 674 28,481
Net cash used in investing activities........... ... ... ..... (171,912)  (172,524) (77,364)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock .................... 36,007 71,114 5,909
Net repayments (issuances) of notes receivable from officers. . .. — 4,487 (168)
Purchase of treasury stock ...... .. ... ... i (34,977) —
Borrowings from bank credit facility............... ... .. ..., — — 171,200
Repayments of bank credit facility ................... .. ..., — — (171,200)
Purchases of subordinated convertible notes .................. — (2735) (6,382)
Payments on capital lease obligations........................ (7,892) (12,304) (12,733)
Increase {decrease) in bank overdraft ....................... 9,716 3,397 (3,806)
Payments of deferred financing fees ......................... (464) o — (2,280)
Cash dividends paid to stockholders .. ............. ... .. ..... (2,871) — —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ............ (481) 66,419 (19,460)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH ..... {166) 160 114
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS......... 73,874 116,825 93,284
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF
YEAR e 253,936 137,111 43,827
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.. ... $ 327,810 $ 253936 $ 137,111

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — The Company and its Significant Accounting Policies
Business '

PETSsMART, Inc., and subsidiaries (the “Company” or “PETsMART"”), is North America’s leading
provider of food, supplies, accessories, live pets and professional services for the lifetime needs of pets. As of
February 1, 2004, the Company operated 643 retail stores. The Company offers a broad line of products for all
the life stages of pets and is the nation’s largest provider of high-quality grooming and pet training services.
Through its strategic relationship with Banfield, The Pet Hospital, operating under the registered trademark of
Banfield, full-service veterinary care is available in more than half the Company’s stores. Through its direct
marketing channels, PETsMART is also a leading mail order catalog and e-commerce retailer of pet and
equine products and supplies.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly and majority-
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

All investments in which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence over the investee,
but less than a controlling voting interest, are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method of accounting, the Company’s share of the investee’s earnings or loss is included in consolidated
operating results. Other investments, for which the Company does not have the ability to exercise significant
influence and for which there is not a readily determinable market value, are accounted for under the cost
method of accounting. The Company periodically evaluates the carrying value of its investments accounted for
under the cost method of accounting and as of February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, such investments were
recorded at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value.

Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday nearest January 31. Fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002 each
comprised 52 weeks, and fiscal 2001 comprised 53 weeks.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Policies related to
sublease income, reserves against deferred tax assets, inventory shrinkage, insurance reserves, and cash flows
in analyses for impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill require significant estimates. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. ‘

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Under the Company’s cash management system, a bank overdraft balance exists for the Company’s
primary disbursement accounts. This overdraft represents uncleared checks in excess of cash balances in the
related bank accounts. The Company’s funds are transferred on an as-needed basis to pay for clearing checks.
As of February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, bank overdrafts of approximately $49,677,000 and $39,961,000,
respectively, were included in accounts payable and bank overdraft in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets. The Company considers any liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Vendor Rebates and Promotions

The Company receives income from certain merchandise suppliers in the form of rebates and promotions.
Agreements are made with each individual merchandise supplier and income is earned as buying levels are
met and/or cooperative advertising is placed. Rebate income is recorded as a reduction of cost of sales, and
cooperative promotional income is recorded as a reduction of operating expenses. The uncollected amounts of
vendor rebate and promotional income remaining in receivables in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets as of February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, were approximately $1,293,000 and $1,263,000,
respectively. Unearned rebates recorded as a reduction of inventory in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets were approximately $385,000 and $962,000 as of February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, respectively.

Merchandise Inventories and Cost of Sales

Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method based on moving average costs and includes certain procurement and distribution costs
relating to the processing of merchandise. The Company maintains reserves for lower of cost or market, as well
as shrinkage.

Total procurement and distribution costs charged to inventory during fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001 were
$169,579,000, $156,926,000, and $126,784,000, respectively. Procurement and distribution costs remaining in
inventory as of February 1, 2004 and February 2, 2003, were $30,262,000 and $25,442,000, respectively.

Cost of sales includes the following types of expenses: direct costs associated with the products sold,
including inbound freight; salaries of the groomers and trainers and other costs related to the services line of
business; warehousing costs, including procurement and distribution costs; store occupancy and utilities costs;
and inventory shrinkage costs. Aiso included in cost of goods sold are reductions for vendor rebates and
discounts.

Inventory Shrinkage Reserves

PETsMART stores perform physical inventories once a year and, in between physical inventories, stores
perform cycle counts on certain inventory items. The forward distribution centers and distribution centers
perform cycle counts encompassing all inventory items every quarter. Therefore, as of the end of each
reporting period, there will be stores with certain inventory items that have not been counted. Due to the
holiday season at the end of the fiscal year, the stores do not perform physical inventories during the last
quarter of the fiscal year, but continue to perform counts on certain inventory items. As of the end of each
reporting period, the Company estimates the inventory shrinkage reserve by applying a rolling two-year
historical shrink rate against the volume of merchandise sales since the last inventory. During 2002, the
Company changed the historical shrink rate from a three-year historical trend to a two-year trend because the
Company believes the actual shrink results in 2000 were skewed by the effects of the implementation of its
business software, and are not indicative of the current results. The implementation of the business software
significantly impacted distribution and replenishment processes causing out of stock and overstock conditions
and significant book to physical inventory adjustments, which continued into 2000. These issues caused
significant fluctuations in 1999 and 2000 shrink rates that are not reflective of current experience. Due to the
reformatting of stores, a stabilization of business software, and improved store inventory management
procedures, the Company believes that recording the shrink estimate based on a two-year trend is an
appropriate reflection of the continuing changes in the business. As of February 1, 2004 and February 2, 2003,
approximately $10,055,000 and $10,243,000, respectively, were recorded for inventory shrinkage reserves.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on
buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment, and computer software using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. Leasehold improvements and capital lease assets are amortized
using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the related
assets. Computer software consists primarily of third party software purchased for internal use. Costs
associated with the preliminary stage of a project are expensed as incurred. Once the project is in the
development phase, external consulting costs, as well as internal labor costs, are capitalized. Training costs,
data conversion costs, and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Maintenance and repairs to furniture,
fixtures, and equipment are expensed as incurred.

The Company’s property and equipment is depreciated using the following estimated useful lives:

Builldings . ... oo 39 years or term of lease
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment .. ......... ... ... .. ... 3-12 years

Leasehold improvements. .. .......... oot 2 - 18 years

Computer SOftWare . . . ..ottt 3 -7 years

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The carrying value of goodwill of $14,422,000 as of February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, respectively,
represents the excess of the cost of acquired businesses over the fair market value of their net assets. In fiscal
2002, the Company recorded $1,200,000 of additional goodwill related to the payment of contingent
consideration associated with the acquisition of PETsMART PETsHOTEL®" in 2000. In the second quarter
of fiscal 2001, the Company eliminated net goodwill of $8,575,000 associated with the increase in ownership of
PETsMART.com (see Note 2). The goodwill was eliminated in connection with the reversal of the valuation
allowance against deferred tax assets and is discussed under Income Taxes (see Note 7). In January 2002, the
Company acquired all of the remaining shares held by PETsMART.com minority stockholders for approxi-
mately $9,500,000, and eliminated the minority interest balance of $604,000. The net amount of $8,896,000
was recorded in goodwill, and is associated with the pet internet and pet catalog direct marketing channels,
which remain an integral part of the Company’s direct marketing strategies.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” the Company discontinued the amortization of goodwill, effective February 4, 2002.
The Company has completed the transitional goodwill impairment test for its reporting units and recorded no
impairment charge.

A reconciliation of the previously reported net income and earnings per common share to the amounts
adjusted for the exclusion of goodwill amortization, net of the related income tax effect, is as follows (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Fiscal 2001
Earnings Per
Share
) Income Basic Diluted
Reported net INCOME . ...ttt et e $39,567 $0.35  $0.35
Add back: amortization expense, net of income tax benefit......... 1,056 0.01 0.01
Adjusted Net INCOME .. .ottt $40,623  $0.36  $0.36




PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Intangible assets consisted solely of trademarks that have an estimated useful life of 15 years. The
trademarks have zero residual value. Changes in the carrying amount for fiscal 2002 and 2003, were as follows
(in thousands):

Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Net
Balance, February 3, 2002 .. ... ..., $4,758 $(1,656)  $3,102
AQGIEONS © -+ oo e 14 (278)  (264)
Balance, February 2, 2003 .. ... .. ... .. i $4,772 $(1,934)  $2,838
AAAIONS .+ oo e e 113 (330)  (217)
Balance, February 1,2004 .. ... ... ... i $4,885 $(2,264) 32,621

Amortization expense for the intangible assets was $330,000 and $278,000 during fiscal 2003 and fiscal
2002, respectively. For fiscal years 2004 through 2008, the Company estimates the amortization expense to be
approximately $348,000 each year.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment, based on undiscounted cash flows, whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If this
review indicates that the carrying amount of the long-lived assets is not recoverable, the Company will
recognize an impairment loss, measured by the future discounted cash flow method or market appraisals. As a
result of continued losses incurred at its PETsSMART Direct subsidiary, and an analysis of the current business
model, in fiscal 2001, the Company recorded a $6,927,000 impairment loss associated with PETsMART
Direct’s building, fixtures, equipment, goodwill, and software, which was recorded in general and administra-
tive expenses (see Note 6). The fair value of such assets was determined based on market appraisals and
analysis of expected future discounted cash flows. During fiscal 2002, no impairment losses were recorded.
During fiscal 2003, the Company recorded a loss of approximately $1,300,000 in general and administrative
expenses, which represented the net book value of leasehold improvements at closed stores.

Insurance Liabilities and Reserves

The Company maintains standard property and casualty insurance on all of its properties, product liability
insurance covering the sale of live pets, self-insured health plans, and workers compensation insurance.
Property insurance covers approximately $949,000,000 in buildings and contents, including furniture and
fixtures, leasehold improvements, and inventory. Under casualty and workers compensation insurance policies
through January 31, 2004, the Company retained the initial risk of loss of $250,000 for each policy per
occurrence. Effective February 1, 2004, the Company engaged a new insurance provider. Under casualty and
workers compensation insurance policies with the new provider, the Company retained an initial risk of loss of
$500,000 for each policy per occurrence on or subsequent to February 1, 2004. The Company establishes
reserves for property and casualty, product liability, and workers compensation losses based on independent
actuarial estimates of the amount of loss inherent in that period’s claims, including losses for which claims
have been incurred but not reported. Loss estimates rely on actuarial observations of ultimate loss experience
for similar historical events, and changes in such assumptions could result in an adjustment to the reserves. As
of February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, the Company had approximately $27,862,000 and $26,500,000,
respectively, in reserves related to casualty, self-insured health plan and workers compensation insurance
policies.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Other Currvent Liabilities

Other current liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):
February 1, February 2,

2004 2003
Accrued legal fees and settlement costs............... ... ... ... ..... $ 2,144 $17,569
Accrued income and sales taX ... ... ... 31,194 13,794
Accrued general hability insurance........ ... ... i 6,328 5,538
Accrued advertising ... ... ..o 2,128 2,149
Accrued capital purchases .. ... .. ... . 11,540 6,637
Gift card liability . ... .. e 5,850 4,158
Other current habilities .. ... .. .. . 46,334 34,345

$105,518 $84,190

Legal fees and other costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are established for temporary differences between the financial
reporting bases and the income tax bases of the Company’s assets and liabilities at enacted tax rates expected
to be in effect when such assets or liabilities are realized or settled. Deferred income tax assets are reduced by
a valuation allowance if, in the judgment of the Company’s management, it is more likely than not that such
assets will not be realized. In 2001, the Company reversed valuation allowances on deferred tax assets of
$18,885,000 associated with the increase in ownership of PETsMART.com (see Note 2). The impact of the
reversed valuation allowances was included in income tax expense net of the reduction of goodwill discussed
above under Goodwill and Intangible Assets.

Revenue Recognition

The Company records revenue at the point of sale for retail stores. The shipping terms for catalog and
internet orders is FOB shipping point, therefore revenue is recognized at the time of shipment for catalog and
electronic commerce sales. Outbound shipping charges are included in net sales when the products are
shipped for catalog and electronic commerce sales. The Company records an allowance for estimated returns
in the period of sale. Revenue for grooming, pet training, and PETsHOTEL is recognized when services are
performed.

Advertising

The Company charges advertising costs to expense as incurred, except for direct response advertising,
which is capitalized and amortized over its expected period of future benefit, and classifies advertising costs
within operating expenses. Total advertising expenditures, net of cooperative income, including direct response
advertising, were $72,793,000, $66,180,000, and $80,247,000 for fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
Direct response advertising consists primarily of product catalogs developed by the Company’s direct
marketing subsidiaries. The capitalized costs of the direct response advertising are amortized over the six-
month to one-year period following the mailing of the respective catalog. As of February 1, 2004, and
February 2, 2003, $1,267,000 and $2,020,000, respectively, of direct response advertising was included in
prepaid expenses and other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Reserve for Closed Stores

The Company continuously evaluates the performance of its retail stores and periodically closes those
that are underperforming. The Company establishes reserves for future rental payments on closed stores and
terminated subleases, and classifies these costs in general and administrative expenses (see Note 6). The costs
for future rental payments associated with closed stores are calculated using the net present value method, at a
credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate, over the remaining life of the lease, net of expected sublease income.
The Company records such reserves as of the date it ceases use of the property. Judgment is used to estimate
the underlying real estate market related to the expected sublease income, and the Company can make no
assurances that additional charges will not be required based on the changing real estate environment. As of
February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, approximately $14,762,000 and $9,261,000, respectively, were
recorded for closed store reserves.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

The local currency has been used as the functional currency in Canada. The assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency are translated into United States dollars at the current rate of exchange at
year-end and revenues and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the year. The translation
gains and losses are included as a separate component of other comprehensive income (loss), and transaction
gains and losses are included in net income.

Comprehensive Income

The income tax expense (benefit) related to the foreign currency translation adjustment, which was the
only component of other comprehensive income, was approximately $2,063,000, $592,000, and $(210,000) for
fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average of common shares
outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period after adjusting for dilutive stock
options and dilutive common shares assumed to be issued on conversion of the Company’s 6%.% Subordinated
Convertible Notes (the “Notes™).

Stock-Based Compensation

As permitted by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-based Compensation” (“SFAS No. 1237), the
Company applies the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees” (APB No. 25), and related interpretations, in recording compensation expense for grants of
equity instruments to employees.

The Company has stock option plans as well an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (see Note 14). The
Company accounts for those plans under APB No. 25, and related Interpretations. Accordingly, no
compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price
equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates
the effect on net income and net income per common share if the Company had applied the fair-value-based
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PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

method of SFAS No. 123 to record compensation expense for stock options and employee stock purchases (in
thousands, except per share data).

Fiscal Year
2003 2002 2001

Net income, as reported . ... .. ...t e $139,549  $88,855  $39,567
Less: Compensation expense for option awards determined by the fair

value based method, net of related tax effects........... ... .. ... (11,107)y  (8,031)  (6,822)
Pro forma net InCome. . ... .. $128,442  $80,824  $32,745
Net income per share Basic:

Net income, as reported . ... ... i $§ 099 ¢ 066 § 035

Pro forma netincome. ... ... ... .. ... $ 091 § 060 $ 029
Diluted:

Net income, as reported . . ... oo vv it e e $§ 095 § 063 §$ 035

Pro forma netincome. ... ... ... i $ 087 $ 058 $ 029

The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptions used for grants in fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively: dividend yield of 0.00% to 0.34%,
0.00%, and 0.00%; expected volatility of 62.8 percent, 63.0 percent and 64.0 percent, respectively; risk-free
interest rates of 1.22 percent to 4.40 percent, 1.32 percent to 5.11 percent, and 2.25 percent to 5.25 percent,
respectively; and expected lives of 1.63 years, 1.58 years, and 1.47 years, respectively. The weighted average
Black-Scholes fair value of options granted during fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001 was $7.59, $5.76, and $2.06,
respectively.

Restricted Stock

The Company may grant restricted stock under the PETsMART, Inc. 1997 Equity Incentive Plan and
the PETsMART, Inc. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (see Note 14). The shares of restricted common stock
awarded under this plan vest on the fourth year anniversary of the date of the award provided the executive is
continuously employed through such anniversary. The Company accounts for this plan under APB No. 25,
and related Interpretations, and compensation expense is recognized pro rata over the four-year vesting period
of the stock. Deferred compensation is based on the fair market value at the date of grant.

Restricted Stock Bonus Plan

The Company had a Restricted Stock Bonus Plan (See Note 14). Restricted stock awards are recognized
as deferred compensation with an offsetting credit to additional paid-in capital and are amortized ratably by a
charge to income over a five-year term. The Company accounted for this plan under APB No. 25, and related
Interpretations.

Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. These balances, as
presented in the consolidated financial statements at February 1, 2004 and February 2, 2003 approximate their
fair value. As of February 3, 2002 the fair market value of the Notes approximated $222,080,000 based upon
information provided by a broker dealer that makes a market in the Notes. During February and March 2002,
the entire balance of the Notes was retired for approximately $275,000 in cash and approximately
19,800,000 shares of common stock.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued FASB Interpretation, or FIN, 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,
“Consolidated Financial Statements,” on January 17, 2003. FIN 46 requires that an entity holding a majority
of the “*variable interest” of a “variable interest entity” must consolidate the operations of that variable interest
entity of which it is the primary beneficiary. In 2003, the Company purchased two properties from the
structured lease financing facility, and based on current appraisals, it recorded a $1,700,000 loss in the
consolidated financial statements. Subsequent to this purchase and also in 2003, the structured lease financing
facility was liquidated and the remaining seven stores were leased by the Company. FIN 46 was effective for
the Company on August 4, 2003. With the liquidation of the Company’s special purpose entity during 2003,
FIN 46 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In March 2003, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, reached a consensus on Issue 02-16,
“Accounting by a Customer (including a Reseller) for Cash Consideration Received from a Vendor.” The
transition provisions apply prospectively to arrangements with vendors entered into or modified after
December 31, 2002, do not allow for prior period reclassification, and require companies to account for all
amounts received from vendors as a reduction of the cost of the products purchased unless certain criteria are
met that allow companies to account for vendor funding as a reduction of related selling, general and
administrative expenses. During 2003 and 2002, the Company recorded approximately $10,931,000 and
$11,007,000, respectively, for cooperative promotional income. The Company adopted the provisions of
EITF 02-16 for vendor contracts entered into or modified subsequent to December 31, 2002, and the adoption
did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In November 2003, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force reached a consensus on Issue 03-10,
“Application of Issue No. 02-16 by Resellers to Sales Incentives Offered to Consumers by Manufacturers.”
Under EITF 03-10, any cash consideration a company receives from a vendor as part of a sales incentive .
arrangement must be recorded in the income statement as an offset to cost of sales, and cannot be recorded as
revenue, unless the company meets certain criteria. EITF 03-10 is effective for new arrangements, including
modifications to existing arrangements, entered into fiscal periods beginning after November 25, 2003. The
Company is currently assessing the impact, if any, regarding the adoption of EITF 03-10.

Reclassifications

For comparative purposes, certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
year presentation.

Note 2 — Acquisition of Controlling Interest in PETsMART.com

In June 2001, the Company purchased 1,020,789 shares of convertible voting preferred stock from
minority shareholders for approximately $741,000, which increased its voting ownership to a requisite
percentage for income tax reporting purposes that allowed the Company to utilize a portion of PET-
sMART.com’s net operating loss carryforwards. As a result, in the second quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company
reversed valuation allowances of deferred tax assets of $18,885,000, eliminated net goodwill of $8,575,000 and
recorded a tax benefit of $10,310,000. In January 2002, the Company acquired all of the remaining shares held
by PETsMART.com minority stockholders for approximately $9,500,000. The balance of the minority interest
as of February 3, 2002 was $604,000. The additional investment and the minority interest represented a net
amount of $8,896,000, which was recorded as goodwill in fiscal 2001. The Pasadena, California-based
operations moved its administrative functions to the Company’s office in Phoenix, Arizona during fiscal 2002.

The minority interest in PETSMART.com held by the Company during fiscal 2001, consisted primarily of
convertible voting preferred stock, which was convertible at fixed conversion rates into common stock of
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PETsMART.com at the holder’s option. The minority interest in the losses of PETsSMART.com for fiscal
2001 was approximately $2,296,000 and has been included in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

Note 3 — Investments

The Company has an investment in MMI1 Holdings, Inc. (“MMIH”), a provider of veterinary and other
pet-related services. MMIH, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Medical Management International, Inc.,
(“MMI”’), operates full-service veterinary hospitals and wellness hospitals inside approximately
350 PETsMART stores, under the name Banfield, The Pet Hospital. The Company’s investment consists of
common and convertible preferred stock. The Company accounts for its investment using the cost method, as
it lacks the ability to exercise significant influence over MMIH’s operating and financial policies. MMIH has
both voting and non-voting common stock and also has voting and non-voting series of convertible preferred
stock. The Company’s ownership interest in the voting common and voting convertible preferred stock of
MMIH as of February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, was approximately 15%, or 2,679,706 shares at
$5,378,000 cost. At February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, the Company owned approximately 32% and
31%, respectively, of the combined voting and non-voting stock of MMIH. As of February 1, 2004, and
February 2, 2003, the Company’s total equity investment in non-voting convertible preferred stock of MMIH
was 4,984,837 shares or $26,995,000. Also, contractual payments of approximately $1,321,000 related to the
transfer of assets were made by the Company in a prior year, totaling $33,694,000 for the investment in
MMIH.

Of the 2,679,706 shares of voting capital stock of MMIH held by the Company: (a) 1,070,772 are shares
of voting convertible preferred stock that may be converted into voting common stock at any time at the option
of the Company; and (b) 1,608,934 are shares of voting common stock. Of the 4,984,837 shares of non-voting
convertible preferred stock held by the Company, 4,821,679 shares are not convertible into voting common
stock until the earliest of: (i) June 1, 2011; (ii) an acquisition of MMIH; or (iii) an initial public offering of
shares of common stock of MMIH. The remaining 163,158 shares of non-voting convertible preferred stock
are convertible into voting common stock at any time at the option of the Company. As of February 1, 2004,
and February 2, 2003, all shares of voting and non-voting convertible preferred stock are convertible into
voting common stock on a one-for-one basis, subject to the restrictions previously discussed. In addition, the
Company holds 250,000 shares of MMIH non-voting common stock that is only convertible into voting
common stock in the event of an initial public offering of shares of common stock of MMIH.

The Company receives licensing fees from MMI for the space in the Company’s retail stores occupied by
veterinary services, which is recorded as a reduction of cost of sales in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. Licensing fees are determined by fixed costs per square foot, adjusted for the number
of days the hospitals are open and sales volumes achieved. Licensing fees of approximately $10,466,000,
$8,293,000, and $6,727,000 were recognized during fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Addition-
ally, licensing fees receivable from MMI totaled $4,371,000 and $2,882,000 at February 1, 2004, and
February 2, 2003, respectively, and were included in receivables in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.
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Note 4 — Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):
February 1, February 2,

2004 2003

Land . .. e $ 3251 § 691
Buildings ... ... 8,776 8,776
Furniture, fixtures and equipment. ...... .. ... .. ..., 300,608 234,265
Leasehold improvements ....................... e 293,872 230,978
Computer software .. ... .. e 51,270 32,885
Buildings, equipment, and computer software under capital leases....... 223,799 218,012

881,576 725,607
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization..................... 332,848 261,667

548,728 463,940
CONnStrUCHON N PrOZIESS. .« v v v st e ettt ittt e e e eee e cine e 28,454 26,007

$577,182  $489,947

Accumulated amortization of equipment, computer software, and buildings under capital leases approxi-
mated $69,191,000 and $57,056,000 as of February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, respectively. During fiscal
2003, the Company entered into capital lease agreements for six buildings, resulting in an addition to capital
leases of approximately $10,701,000 (See Note 12).

Depreciation and amortization expense for stores is recorded in Operating Expense, and corporate
depreciation and amortization expense is recorded in General and Administrative Expense, based on actual
amounts.

The Company evaluates capitalized interest under SFAS No. 34, “Capitalization of Interest Cost”’, and
due to the short-term nature of projects in process, the Company had no capitalized interest for fiscal years
2003, 2002, and 2001.

Note 5 — Notes Receivable from Officers

During fiscal 2000, the Company provided loans to certain officers to be used only for the purpose of
purchasing shares of the Company’s common stock on the open market. As of February 2, 2003, the notes had
been repaid in full, and the Company will not make any new loans to its officers under this program in the
future.

Note 6 — Special Charges
Reorganization of PETSMART Dirvect and PETsMART.com

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company approved a plan to move administrative functions,
during fiscal 2002, of PETsMART Direct, Inc. (“PETsMART Direct”) and PETsMART.com, Inc.
(“PETsMART.com”) to the Company’s administrative office located in Phoenix, Arizona. PETsMART
Direct has, among other functions, the merchandising, human resource, and finance operations provided by
the personnel in Arizona under a shared services arrangement. As a result of the reorganization of these
functions, the Company eliminated 44 positions during fiscal 2002, and recorded severance charges of
approximately $431,000 in fiscal 2001. The PETsMART Direct facility, located in Brockport, New York,
continues to handle warehousing and fulfillment for the pet and equine catalogs, e-commerce sites, and in-
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store State Line Tack departments, and manages customer service for all direct marketing operations. Also, as
part of the plan, the Company closed five small neighborhood PetWise retail stores located in upstate
New York, and recorded a reserve in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 of approximately $698,000 for the
remaining offices and retail store lease obligations. In fiscal 2001, the Company also sold a subsidiary of
PETsMART Direct for approximately $800,000, which resulted in a loss of approximately $906,000. Included
in the loss on sale of subsidiary is a $400,000 reserve against a note received as part of the purchase price,
which is classified in long-term other assets, and is not part of the restructure reserve liability.

“In January 2002, the Company acquired all of the remaining shares held by PETsSMART.com minority
stockholders for approximately $9,500,000. In fiscal 2002, the Pasadena, California-based operations moved
its administrative functions to the Company’s office in Phoenix, Arizona. As a result of the reorganization of
these functions, the Company eliminated 46 positions during fiscal 2002, and recorded severance charges of
approximately $979,000 in fiscal 2001. The Company also recorded a reserve of $80,000 in fiscal 2001 for the
remaining lease obligations associated with the PETsMART.com office space in Pasadena, California.

The activity related to the loss on sale of subsidiary, fixed asset write downs, and severance associated
with the reorganization of PETSMART Direct and PETsMART.com for fiscal 2002 and 2001 was as follows
(in thousands):

Fiscal 2002 Activity

February 3, Cash Non-cash February 2,
2002 Charges Payments Activity 2003
Severance .......... ... $1,410 $ —  $(1,410) § — $§ —
$1,410 $ — $(1,410) $ — $ —
Fiscal 2001 Activity
January 28, Cash Non-cash February 3,
2001 Charges Payments Activity 2002
Loss on sale of subsidiary............. $ — $ 506 § — § (506) § —
Fixed asset write downs .............. — 580 — (580) —
Severance ............. ... ... — 1,410 — — 1,410
$ — $2,496 $§ —  $(1,086) $1,410

Reserve for Closed Stores

The Company continuously evaluates the performance of its retail stores and periodically closes those
that are under-performing. Reserves for future rental payments on closed stores and terminated subleases are
established in the period the store is closed, in accordance with SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” The costs for further rental payments associated with closed
stores are calculated by using the net present value method, at a credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate, over the
remaining life of the lease, net of expected sublease income.

In 1996, the Company recorded a restructuring charge associated with closing certain stores. In addition,
in 2001, the Company recorded a restructuring charge associated with closing certain administrative offices
and restructuring the Company’s direct marketing channels, which included PETsMART.com and two
branded catalogs. The Company has combined these reserves with its other store closing reserves for purposes
of the reconciliation shown below.
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The activity related to the closed store reserve, as well as the remaining lease obligations for closed stores
and office associated with the PETSMART Direct and PETsMART.com reorganization was as follows (in
thousands): »

Fiscal Year Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,

) 2004 2003 2002
Opening balance ......... ... . . i, $ 9,261 $12,452 $ 4,427
Charges — closed StOres . .. ...oovvieiii i 11,179 2,086 13,908
Charges — reorganization. . ...........coveuiinniennn... — — 778
Cash payments ....... ... ... i (5,678) (5,277) (6,661)
Ending balance ............. ..t $14,762 $ 9,261 $12,452

The current portion of the closed store reserve is recorded in other current liabilities, and the noncurrent
portion of the reserve is recorded in deferred rents and other noncurrent liabilities.

The costs for future rental payments associated with closed stores were calculated using the net present
value method, at a credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate, over the remaining life of the lease, net of expected
sublease income. Approximately $4,524,000 was recorded in fiscal 2003 as a charge to the reserve due to
changes in sublease assumptions and an increase in real property tax assessments. In fiscal 2002, approxi-
mately $156,000 was recorded as a reduction to the reserve, due to a change in sublease assumptions.
Approximately $2,931,000 of the charges in fiscal 2001 was to increase previously established restructuring
reserves, as discussed above. The adjustments and charges were recorded in general and administrative
expenses. The Company can make no assurances that additional charges related to these closed stores will not
be required based on the changing real estate environment.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Asset Write-Downs

During fiscal 2001, the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately $6,927,000, a write-
down of inventory of approximately $2,100,000, and a charge of approximately $720,000 for other asset write-
downs and reserves.

As a result of continued losses incurred at its PETsSMART Direct subsidiary, and an analysis of the
current business model, the Company recorded a $6,927,000 impairment loss associated with PETsMART
Direct’s building, fixtures, equipment, software, and goodwill, which was recorded in general and administra-
tive expenses. The fair value of such assets was determined based on market appraisals and analysis of
expected future discounted cash flows. Also in fiscal 2001, the Company analyzed the inventory at
PETsMART Direct and decided to discount or dispose of certain items, resulting in a $2,100,000 charge to
cost of sales to record the inventory at its estimated net realizable value. The Company can make no
assurances that additional charges will not be required based on continued evaluation of the PETsMART
Direct business model.

During fiscal 2003, the Company recorded a loss of approximately $1,300,000 in general and administra-
tive expenses, which represented the net bodk value of leasehold improvements at closed stores.
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Note 7 — Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income tax expense, and minority interest is as follows (in thousands):

United States
Foreign

Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, February 2, February 3,
2004 2003 2002
................. $220,774  $154,130 $43,053
................. 7,058 (317) 2,190
$227,832  $153,813 $45,243

The income tax expense before minority interest consists of the following (in thousands):

Current provision:
Federal

Deferred provision (benefit):
Federal

Income tax expense

Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, February 2, February 3,
2004 2003 2002
................. $74,008 $ 72,567 $ 30,104
................. 11,795 8,332 4,424
85,803 80,899 34,528
................. 1,396 (16,790)  (26,625)
................. 1,084 849 (2,426)
................. — — 2,495
2,480 (15941)  (26,556)
................. $88,283 $ 64958 § 7972

A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate before
minority interest is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Provision at federal statutory tax rate ..

State income taxes, net of federal
income tax benefit ................

Foreign taxes

Costs associated with the settlement of
litigation

Enacted change in foreign income tax

Fiscal Year Ended
February 2, 2003

February 1, 2004 February 3, 2002

Dollars % Dollars P Dollars %
$79,741  35.0% $53,834 35.0% $ 15835  35.0%
8371 3.8 5968 39 1,299 2.9

- - - = 38 1
- — 5545 3.6 — —
- - - - 1185 26
(0.0) (0.0) (627) (0.4)  (10,923) (24.1)
171 00 238 0.1 538 1.1
$88,283  38.8% $64,958 422% $ 7972  17.6%
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The components of the net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) included in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets are as follows (in thousands):

February 1, February 2,
2004 2003

Deferred income tax assets:

Reserve for closed StOres .. ...t $ 6,018 $§ 3,716
Miscellaneous reserves and accruals .. .....oo i 1,620 4,625
Employee benefit eXpense . ...ttt 15,099 14,896
Capital lease . ... . .. 42,237 47,592
Net operating loss carryforwards. . ....... ... ... 37,576 39,203
_Capital loss carryforwards ............ ... i 54,681 53,221
COTRET Lo 9,727 13,678
Total deferred income tax assets. . ...t nnnn.. 166,958 176,931
Valuation allowance . ........... ittt (75,247) (73,787)
Net deferred income tax assets .. ... nnennnn. 91,711 103,144
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Depreciation . ...... ... (31,976) (40,452)
INVENTOTY TESETVE . . . ittt ettt e et et e e e (1,576) (1,821)
Inventory uniform capitalization ................. . oo (3,744) (3,524)
Other ......... ... ... ... .. ... O (4,076) (2,477)
Total deferred income tax liabilities .. .............. ... ........ (41,372) (48,274)
Net deferred income tax assets .. ......cvvii .. $ 50,339 $ 54,870

The components of the net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) at February 3, 2002, have been
adjusted to separately state certain deferred tax assets and liabilities, which were previously netted.

The Company records a valuation allowance on the deferred income tax assets to reduce the total to an
amount that management believes is more likely than not to be realized. The valuation allowances at
February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, are based upon the Company’s estimates of the future realization of
deferred income tax assets. Valuation allowances at February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003 were principally
to offset certain deferred income tax asscts for operating and capital loss carryforwards. The change in
valuation allowance resulted in no income statement benefit during 2003 and approximately $786,000 income
statement benefit during 2002. The remaining changes in the valuation allowances were due primarily to
respective increase or reduction in deferred tax assets for certain net operating and capital loss carryforwards,
for which no expense or benefit was recorded. As of February 1, 2004, approximately $15,349,000 of valuation
allowance related to net operating loss carryforwards. Should the Company increase its utilization of these net
operating loss carryforwards, such that the valuation allowance is reduced, a significant portion of the benefit
may need to be recorded as a reduction to goodwill, for which no income statement benefit would be realized.

As of February 1, 2004, the Company had, for income tax reporting purposes, federal net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $90,230,000 which expire in varying amounts between 2019 and 2020, foreign
net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $5,556,000 which expire in varying amounts between 2006
and 2008, state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $111,199,000 which expire in varying
amounts between 2004 and 2019, and capital loss carryforwards of approximately $138,555,000 to offset future
capital gains, if any, of which approximately $118,779,000 will expire in 2004 and the remainder in varying
amounts between 2005 through 2008. No deferred tax asset has been recorded for the foreign net operating
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loss carryforwards as it is anticipated that any benefit associated with their utilization would be offset by
United States residual tax. The federal net operating loss carryforwards are subject to certain limitations on
their utilization pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and similar
limitations apply to certain state net operating loss carryforwards under state tax laws.

During 2001, the Company increased its voting ownership in PETsMART.com to the requisite
percentage for income tax reporting purposes that will allow the Company to utilize a portion of
PETsMART.com’s net operating loss carryforwards. As a result, the Company reversed previously established
valuation allowances of approximately $18,885,000, eliminated the remaining goodwill associated with the
transaction, and recorded a tax benefit of $10,310,000. Effective fiscal 2001, operating results of
PETsMART.com are included in the Company’s consolidated federal income tax return.

The Company operates in multiple tax jurisdictions and could be subject to audit in these jurisdictions.
These audits can involve complex issues that may require an extended period of time to resolve and may cover
multiple years. The Company believes an adequate provision for taxes has been made for all years subject to
audit.

Note 8 — Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is computed in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.” Basic earnings
per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average of common shares outstanding during
each period. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution of securities that could share in earnings,
such as common stock equivalents that may be issuable upon exercise of outstanding common stock options.

During February and March 2002, the remaining balance of the Company’s Notes was called for
redemption, resulting in the purchase of the Notes for approximately $275,000 in cash and the conversion of
the remainder into approximately 19,800,000 shares of common stock. Prior to the conversion, and due to the
dilutive effect these shares would have had on earnings per share, the Company included these shares in the
calculation of earnings per share for fiscal 2002. Net income is adjusted for the interest expense, net of income
tax benefit, when the Notes are included in the diluted earnings per share calculation. These shares were not
included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share for fiscal 2001 due to the anti-dilutive effect they
would have on earnings per share if converted.

A reconciliation of the basic and diluted per share computations for fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001 is as
follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, 2004 February 2, 2003 February 3, 2002
Weighted Per Weighted Per Weighted Per
Average Share Average Share Average Share
Income Shares  Amount Income  Shares Amount Loss Shares  Amount

Net income per common share —
basic ... ..ol $139,549 141,641 $0.99  $88,855 134,148 $0.66  $39,567 112,006 $0.35

Effect of dilutive securities:

Options and dilutive effect of
subordinated notes ........ — 5,614 0.04 694 7,534 0.03 — 2,061 —

Net income per common share —
diluted ........ .. $139,549 147,255 $0.95  $89,549 141,682 $0.63  $39,567 114,067 $0.35

In fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001, options to purchase approximately 362,609, 609,300, and 2,616,000 shares
of common stock, respectively, were outstanding but not included in the computation of diluted earnings per
share because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of common shares.
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In March 2003, the Board of Directors extended the term of the purchase of the Company’s common
stock for an additional three years through March 2006, and the authorized amount of annual purchases to
$35,000,000. The Company’s policy on the purchase of its common stock is to make market purchases when
the price is advantageous and as cash flow allows, to maintain appropriate liquidity. During fiscal 2003, the
Company purchased approximately 1,406,000 shares of its common stock for $34,977,000, or an average price
of $24.87 per share.

Note 9 — Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a defined contribution plan pursuant to Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code
(the “401(k) Plan”). The 401(k) Plan covers substantially all employees that meet certain service
requirements. The Company matches employee contributions, up to specified percentages of those contribu-
tions, as approved by the Board of Directors. Certain employees can elect to defer receipt of certain salary and
cash bonus payments pursuant to the Company’s Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan. The Company
matches employee contributions up to certain amounts as defined in the Deferred Compensation Plan
documents. During fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized expense related to matching
contributions under these Plans of $3,687,000, $2,378,000, and $2,139,000, respectively.

Note 10 — Subordinated Convertible Notes

In November 1997, the Company sold $200,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its Notes due 2004.
The outstanding Notes were convertible into the Company’s common stock at any time prior to maturity at a
conversion price of $8.75 per share, subject to adjustment under certain conditions.

During fiscal 2000, the Company repurchased and retired Notes with a face value of $18,750,000 at a
discounted price of $13,630,000. In connection with the repurchase of the Notes, the related portion of the
unamortized deferred financing costs of $432,000 was written off and included in the determination of the gain
on extinguishment of debt. The Company recognized a gain of approximately $4,688,000, as a reduction to
general and administrative expenses. The Company also reclassified the related income taxes of approximately
$1,876,000 to income tax expense (see Note 1).

During fiscal 2001, the Company repurchased and retired Notes with a face value of $7,750,000 at a
discounted price of $6,382,000. In connection with the repurchase of the Notes, the related portion of the
unamortized deferred financing costs of $178,000 was written off and included in the determination of the gain
on extinguishment of debt. The Company recognized a gain of approximately $1,190,000, as a reduction to
general and administrative expenses. The Company also reclassified the related income tax expense for fiscal
2001 of approximately $476,000 to income tax expense (see Note 1). The remaining principle outstanding as
of February 3, 2002, was $173,500,000.

In February and March, 2002, the remaining balance of $173,500,000 of the Notes were called for
redemption, resulting in the repurchase of the Notes for approximately $275,000 in cash and the conversion of
the remainder into approximately 19,800,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price of
$8.75 per share. As a result of the redemption, unamortized debt issuance costs of $2,357,000 and accrued
interest of $3,864,000 were reclassified to stockholders’ equity, resulting in a net increase of $1,507,000.

Note 11 — Common Stock

In July 2002, the Company filed a registration statement on Form S-3 for a public offering of
14,500,000 shares of its common stock, plus an over-allotment option of 2,175,000 shares. Of these shares,
13,182,584 were offered by entities affiliated with Carrefour SA, and 1,317,416 shares, plus the shares in the
over-allotment option, were offered by the Company.
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On August 5, 2002, the Company completed the sale of 1,317,416 shares of common stock for $13.40 per
share, resulting in proceeds, net of underwriting fees, of approximately $16,859,000. On August 12, 2002, the
underwriters exercised the over-allotment option and purchased 2,175,000 additional shares of common stock
for $13.40 per share, resulting in proceeds, net of underwriting fees, of approximately $27,833,000. Costs
associated with the offering were approximately $767,000 and were accounted for as a reduction of the
proceeds.

Note 12 — Financing Arrangements and Lease Obligations
Bank Credit Facility

On April 30, 2001, the Company entered into a new credit arrangement with a group of lenders that
provides for borrowings of up to $250,000,000, including a sublimit of up to $150,000,000 for letters of credit,
and was to expire on April 30, 2004. Borrowings and letter of credit issuances under the facility are subject to a
borrowing base and bear interest, at the Company’s option, at either a bank’s prime rate plus 0% to 0.50% or
LIBOR plus 2.00% to 2.50%. Due to the Company’s desire for greater flexibility in the financial covenants and
the historically limited use of the credit facility, the credit facility was amended on June 20, 2002, to reduce
the available commitment to $200,000,000, extend the maturity by two years to April 30, 2006, and amend
certain covenants. On November 21, 2003, the Company further amended its credit facility to reduce the
available commitment to $125,000,000, extend the maturity by two years to April 30, 2008, amend certain
covenants, and the fee payable to the lenders each quarter was reduced to an annual rate of 0.25% from
0.375% of the unused amount of the credit facility. The credit facility permits the payment of dividends, so
long as the Company is not in default and the payment of dividends would not result in default of the facility.
The arrangement is secured by substantially all personal property assets of the Company and its domestic
subsidiaries and certain real property of the Company. At February 1, 2004, and February 2, 2003, there were
no borrowings outstanding on this credit arrangement.

Letters of Credit

The Company issues letters of credit for guarantees provided for insurance programs, capital leases, and
utilities. As of February 1, 2004, approximately $22,727,000 was outstanding under letters of credit.

Operating and Capital Leases

The Company leases substantially all of its stores, retail distribution centers, corporate offices, and certain
equipment under noncancellable operating leases. The terms of the store leases generally range from 10 to
25 years and typically allow the Company to renew for three to five additional five-year terms. Store leases,
excluding renewal options, expire at various dates through 2021. Certain leases require payment of property
taxes, utilities, common area maintenance, insurance and, if annual sales at certain stores exceed specified
amounts, provide for additional rents. In addition, certain leases provide for rent increases based on changes in
the Consumer Price Index. Total operating lease rent expense incurred, net of sublease income, during fiscal
2003, 2002, and 2001 was $174,341,000, $170,842,000, and $195,107,000, respectively. Additional rent
included in those amounts during fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001 was $131,000, $75,000, and $12,000,
respectively. ’

The Company has entered into sale and leaseback transactions for several of its store locations, which
included buildings and underlying land. Such assets were sold at cost and were leased back at terms similar to
those of other leased stores. The Company has no future material commitments regarding the sale of these
properties. The Company also leases certain fixtures and equipment, computer hardware, and software under
capital leases.
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At February 1, 2004, the future minimum annual rental commitments under all noncancelable leases
were as follows (in thousands):

Operating Capital

Leases Leases
2004 . e $ 195525 § 21,755
20005 e 193,483 21,113
2006 . 189,705 21,236
2007 o 186,872 21,774
2008 181,747 21,869
Thereafter ... e e 1,135,286 235,132
Total minimum rental commitments ............ .ot nnon.. $2,082,618 342,879
Less: amounts representing interest . .........ovitvieneineunennen. . 172,177
Present value of obligations . ....... . ... i i 170,702
Less: current portion. .. ...t e 4,964
Long-term oblgations. ... ......ourtt ittt $165,738

The operating lease payment schedule above is shown net of sublease income. Sublease income for
operating and capital leases is as follows: 2004: $3,697,000; 2005: $3,810,000; 2006: $3,763,000; 2007:
$3,622,000; 2008: $3,374,000, and thereafter, $13,780,000. The store operating leases represent those for open
stores, closed stores, and stores to be opened in 2004 that have a lease agreement.

The Company receives licensing fees from MMI for the space in the Company’s retail stores occupied by
veterinary services, that are recorded as a reduction to cost of sales in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. Licensing fees are determined by fixed costs per square foot, adjusted for the number
of days the hospitals are open and sales volumes achieved. Income of approximately $10,466,000, $8,293,000,
and $6,727,000 was recognized during fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Additionally, licensing
fees receivable from MMI totaled $4,371,000 and $2,882,000 as of February 1, 2004 and February 2, 2003,
respectively, and was included in receivables in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Structured Lease Facilities

The Company previously entered into lease agreements for certain stores as part of structured lease
financing. The structured lease financing facilities provided a special purpose entity, not affiliated with the
Company, with the necessary financing to complete the acquisition and construction of new stores. Once
construction was completed, another special purpose entity, also not affiliated with the Company, leased the
completed stores to the Company for a four-year term. After the four-year term expired, the Company was
required to pay off the balance of the financing, provide for the sale of the properties to a third party, or pay a
guaranteed residual amount. During fiscal 2003, the Company had one outstanding special purpose entity
lease, which encompassed two properties and seven stores. The special purpose entity engaged in no other
business activity.

In fiscal 2003, the Company purchased the two properties and recorded a $1,700,000 loss. In June 2003,
the seven stores under the structured leasing facility were sold to a third party by the special purpose entity
lessor. The buyer of the properties paid all principal amounts owing on the financing, and the Company paid
all accrued interest of approximately $2,200,000. The Company recorded no material gain or loss in this
transaction. The Company immediately entered into lease agreements for the seven stores with the third party
buyer. Based on the lease terms, the lease agreements for six of the seven buildings resulted in capital lease
treatment under SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.” As a result, the Company recognized capital lease
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assets and related obligations of approximately $10,701,000 upon execution of the lease agreements. One of
the buildings and the related land for all seven stores resulted in operating leases. These transactions have
eliminated any arrangements between special purpose entities and the Company.

Note 13 — Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

On January 16, 2001, certain former stockholders of Pet City Holdings, a U.K. corporation (“Pet City”),
including Richard Northcott, who was a PETsMART board member from December 1996 to September
1997, filed two complaints, one in federal court and one in state court, seeking damages against PETsMART
and certain of its former or current officers and directors. These plaintiffs subsequently dismissed the state
court complaint prior to the issuance of any rulings on the merits, and added the claims from the state
complaint to a consolidated federal complaint. The consolidated complaint related to the 1996 acquisition of
Pet City by PETsMART. Plaintiffs alleged misrepresentations or omissions that misled the shareholders of
Pet City concerning PETsMART’s business, financial status, and prospects. As a result of a series of
mediations before a retired federal magistrate judge, the parties settled the case out of court in January 2003
and stipulated to a dismissal of plaintiffs’ consolidated complaint with prejudice. The dismissal order was
entered by the court on February 18, 2003. In 2003, the Company paid a settlement fee of $16,400,000, and in
2001 and 2002, the Company recorded approximately $5,000,000 and $13,200,000, respectively, for settlement
fees, legal costs, and taxes associated with the litigation.

The Company is involved in the defense of various other legal proceedings that it does not believe are
material to its business.

Guarantees

The following is a summary of agreements that the Company has determined are within the scope of
FIN 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees
of Indebtedness of Others an interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and rescission of FASB
interpretation No. 34, which are specifically grandfathered because the guarantees were in effect prior to
December 31, 2002. Accordingly, the Company has no liabilities recorded for these agreements as of
February 1, 2004, except as noted below.

As permitted under Delaware law and the Company’s bylaws and certificate of incorporation, the
Company has agreements whereby the Company indemnifies its officers and directors for certain events or
occurrences while the officer or director is, or was, serving at the request of the Company. The term of the
indemnification period is for the officer’s or director’s lifetime. The maximum potential amount of future
payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited;
however, the Company has a directors’ and officers’ insurance policy that may enable recovery of a portion of
any future amounts paid. Assuming the applicability of coverage and the willingness of the insurer to assume
coverage and subject to certain retention, loss limits, and other policy provisions, the Company believes the
estimated fair value of this indemnification obligation is not material. However, no assurances can be given
that the insurers will not attempt to dispute the validity, applicability, or amount of coverage without expensive
and time-consuming litigation against the insurers.

As of February 1, 2004, the Company had letters of credit for guarantees of $20,650,000 for insurance
policies, $2,000,000 for capital lease agreements, and $77,000 for utilities. The liabilities associated with the
insurance policies, capital leases, and utilities were recorded in the consolidated balance sheet as of
February 1, 2004.
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Note 14 — Stock Incentive Plans
Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) that enables essentially all employees to
purchase the Company’s common stock on semi-annual offering dates at 85% of the fair market value of the
shares on the offering date or, if lower, at 85% of the fair market value of the shares on the purchase date. A
maximum of 4,000,000 shares are authorized for purchase until the ESPP plan termination date of July 31,
2012. A total of 430,000, 468,000, and 394,000 shares were purchased in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively,
for aggregate proceeds of $5,328,000, $3,284,000, and $1,322,000, respectively.

Restricted Stock

The Company may grant restricted stock under the PETsMART, Inc. 1997 Equity Incentive Plan and
the PETsSMART, Inc. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan. Under the terms of the plans, employees may be awarded
shares of common stock of the Company, subject to approval by the Board of Directors. The employee may be
required to pay par value for the shares depending on their length of service. The shares of common stock
awarded under the plans are subject to a reacquisition right held by the Company. In the event that the award
recipient’s employment by, or service to, the Company is terminated for any reason, the Company should
simultaneously and automatically reacquire for no consideration all of the unvested shares of restricted
common stock previously awarded to the recipient.

In fiscal 2003, the Company awarded 583,000 shares of restricted stock and recorded approximately
$8,882,000 as deferred compensation with an offsetting credit to additional paid-in capital. Such deferred
compensation is being amortized ratably by a charge to income over the four-year term of the restricted stock
awards. In fiscal year 2003, the Company recorded $2,090,000 of compensation expense for restricted stock.
During fiscal year 2003, approximately 9,000 shares were reacquired by the Company due to employee
terminations.

Restricted Stock Bonus Plan

The Company had a Restricted Stock Bonus Plan, under which employees were awarded shares of
common stock of the Company, subject to approval by the Board of Directors. The shares of common stock
awarded under the Restricted Stock Bonus Plan are subject to a reacquisition right held by the Company. In
the event that the award recipient’s employment by, or service to, the Company is terminated for any reason,
the Company should simultaneously and automatically reacquire for no consideration all of the unvested
shares of restricted common stock previously awarded to the recipient.

The employee was not required to make any cash payment as a condition of receiving the award. The
shares of restricted common stock awarded under the Restricted Stock Bonus Plan vested and were released
from the Company’s reacquisition right under an accelerated schedule when the Company’s common stock
price reached certain specified targets. If the specified stock price targets are not reached, the shares
nevertheless become 100% vested five years after the award date, provided that the award recipient has been in
continuous service with the Company from the award date.

In fiscal 1998, the Company awarded 286,000 shares under the Restricted Stock Bonus Plan and
recorded approximately $3,003,000 as deferred compensation with an offsetting credit to additional paid-in
capital. The Company accounted for this plan under APB No. 23, and related Interpretations. Such deferred
compensation was being amortized ratably by a charge to income over the five-year term of the restricted
stock awards. During fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001 approximately 5,500, 9,200 and 25,000 shares, respectively,
were reacquired by the Company due to employee terminations.
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In fiscal 2003, all remaining shares became fully vested. At February 1, 2004, there were no remaining
outstanding shares under the Restricted Stock Bonus Plan and the compensation expense has been fully
recognized. Compensation expense was $19,000, $172,000, and $106,000 in fiscal year 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively.

Stock Options

During fiscal 2003, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment and restatement of the 1995
Equity Incentive Plan as the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan. The amendments to the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan
included an increase of 7,000,000 shares of common stock authorized for issuance, an extension of the term to
August 31, 2007, a minimum exercise price for all options granted be equivalent to the fair market value on
the date of the grant, a cap of 20% on awards that may be granted below fair market value on the date of grant
and the awards subject to the cap shall have a cumulative weighted average vesting period of at least three
years. The Company may grant under the PETSMART, Inc. 1997 Equity Incentive Plan and the
PETsMART, Inc. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan either incentive stock options, nonstatutory options and other
stock awards to purchase up to 24,155,700 shares of common stock. These grants are made to employees,
including officers, consultants and directors of the Company, at the fair market value on the date of the grant.
At February 1, 2004, stock options to purchase 12,679,970 shares of common stock were outstanding with
exercise prices ranging from $2.41 to $28.75 per share. Options generally vest over a period of three to four
years and expire ten years after the date of grant. As of February 1, 2004, stock options to purchase
346,113 shares of common stock were also outstanding under the Company’s 1996 Non-Employee Directors
Equity Plan with exercise prices ranging from $3.03 to $19.00 per share. The 1996 Non-Employee Directors
Equity Plan expired on May 11, 2002, and no further options may be granted under this plan.

Activity in all of the Company’s stock option plans is as follows (in thousands except per share data):

Weighted

Average Exercise

Shares Price per Share
Outstanding, January 28, 2001 .. .. ... . .. i 13,956 $8.09
Granted . . ... . 4,244 4.03
Exercised ... ... . e (847) 5.79
Canceled .. ... (2,097) 7.97
Outstanding, February 3, 2002 . ... ... .. i i 15,256 $7.11
Granted . . ... . 3,453 11.33
Exercised . ... ... (3,569) 6.86
Canceled .. ... . (647) 6.61
Outstanding, February 2, 2003 ... ... .. .. i 14,493 $8.20
Granted . ... . e 3,227 15.31
Exercised ... ... (3,914) 7.84
Canceled . ... . (779) 12.75
Outstanding, February 1, 2004 . ... ... ... . i 13,027 $9.80

As of February 1, 2004, February 2, 2003, and February 3, 2002, the Company had 7,371,000 stock
options, 8,512,000 stock options, and 8,456,000 stock options exercisable, respectively.
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The following table summarizes information about the Company’s stock options as of February 1, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted Weighted

Range of Number Remaining Average Number Average
Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price

(In thousands) (In thousands)

$2410-8% 2410......... 222 6.88 § 241 221 $ 242

$ 2500 -8 3.030......... 1,779 7.14 $ 3.02 1,053 $ 3.02

$ 3.625-8 4.660......... 1,448 6.25 $ 4.08 1,292 $ 4.04

$4950-8 7.625......... 1,795 4.62 $ 7.44 1,726 $ 7.47

$ 8430-% 9.188......... 709 5.99 $ 8.65 598 $ 8.64

$ 9.380 - $10.550......... 2,290 7.57 $10.48 1,056 $10.40

$10.700 - $14.620......... 1,272 4.92 $12.83 930 $12.63

$14.880 - $14.880......... 2,694 9.01 $14.88 — $ —

$14.910 - $28.750......... 818 5.28 $19.44 495 $18.98

13,027 6.76 $ 9.80 7,371 $ 8.02

Stockholder Rights Plan

On August 4, 1997, the Company adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan under which one preferred share
purchase right was distributed on August 29, 1997, for each share of common stock held on that date. No
certificates for the rights will be issued unless a person or group, subject to certain exceptions, acquires 15% or
more of the Company’s common stock or announces a tender offer for 15% or more of the common stock.
Each right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company, upon such event, one one-hundredth
of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 per share, at a price of
$65.00 per one one-hundredth of a preferred share. Each preferred share is designed to be the economic
equivalent of 100 shares of common stock. The rights expire August 28, 2007, and are subject to redemption at
a price of $0.001 in specified circumstances.

Note 15 — Supplemental Schedule of Cash Flows

Supplemental cash flow information for fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 2001 was as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2003 2002 2001
Interest paid. ...\ $20,382  $ 19,260 $ 24,405
Income taxes paid . ... $52,983 $ 74,009 $§ 9,427
Conversion of subordinated notes to common stock .......... $ — $174,732  § —
Assets acquired using capital lease obligations .............. $10,701 § 11,263  $107,930

Note 16 — Financial Information by Business Segment

As of February 3, 2002, the Company had three operating segments; PETsMART North America, which
included all retail stores; PETsMART Direct, which included the Company’s equine catalog and Internet
operations; and PETsMART .com, which included the Company’s pet catalog and Internet operations. As a
result of the reorganization of the PETsMART Direct and PETsMART.com operations and the financial
results of these operating segments during fiscal 2002, the Company has evaluated its segment reporting
requirements under SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,”
and determined that the PETSMART Direct and PETsMART.com operating segments do not meet the
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quantitative thresholds for disclosure as reportable segments. As a result, all segment disclosure information
for fiscal 2001 have been revised to reflect the current single reportable segment.

Note 17 — Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Fiscal Year Ended February 1, 2004 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except per share data)

Netsales . ... $696,798  $725,849  $733,669  $839,735
Gross profit .. ... 205,619 215,871 218,182 270,262
Operating inCome . . .......covvininnennnan... 44,480 50,252 52,128 97,068
Income before income tax expense ............ 40,179 45,871 48,326 93,456
Net INCOME . oottt $ 24610 $ 28,096 § 29,599 § 57,244
Basic earning per share . ..................... $§ 018 § 020 $§ 021 $ 040
Diluted earning per share .................... $ 017 § 019 $§ 020 $§ 039
Weighted average common and common

equivalent shares outstanding:

Basic ... ... 140,222 141,186 142,571 142,583

Diluted ............. .. .. ... 144,638 146,522 148,504 148,241

First Second Third Fourth
Fiscal Year Ended February 2, 2003 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except per share data)

Netsales........ooii i i $645,788  $6351,466 $657,406  $740,524
Gross profit ... ... 181,538 186,391 191,614 228,497
Operating income . .. .....oovvvinieinnn. 41,104 39,783 37,012 33,947
Income before income tax expense ............ 36,302 34,970 32,907 49.634
Net iNCOMe . ...ttt $ 22,145 § 21,509 $ 20,649 § 24,552
Basic earning per share ...................... $ 018 § 016 § 015 $ 0.18
Diluted earnings per share ................... $ 017 § 015 $ 014 § 017
Weighted average common and common

equivalent shares outstanding:

Basic ... . .. 125,561 133,718 137,839 139,292

Diluted ........... ... ... . 138,389 139,853 143,994 144,717

(1) On June 23, 2003, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.02 per share payable on
November 21, 2003, to stockholders of record on October 31, 2003. On December 16, 2003, the Board of
Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.02 per share payable on February 20, 2004, to
stockholders of record on January 30, 2004. '
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Note 18 — Subsequent Event

On March 23, 2004, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.03 per share payable
on May 21, 2004, to stockholders of record on April 30, 2004.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors and Stockholders
PETsMART, Inc.
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PETsMART, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company’’) as of February 1, 2004 and February 2, 2003, and for each of the three fiscal years in the period
ended February 1, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated April 9, 2004; such consolidated financial
statements and report are included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Our audits also included the consolidated
financial statement schedule of the Company, listed in Item 15(a)2. This consolidated financial statement
schedule is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based
on our audits. In our opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to
the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

DeLoITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
April 9, 2004
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SCHEDULE II

PETsMART, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at Balance at
Beginning Charged to End of
Description of Period Expense Deductions Period

(In thousands)

Valuation reserve deducted in the balance sheet from the
asset to which it applies:

Merchandise inventories:
Fiscal year 2001, Lower of cost or market Allowance $4,289 $3,078 $(4,366) $3,001

Fiscal year 2002, Lower of cost or market Allowance $3,001 $1,703 $(3,292) $1,412

Fiscal year 2003, Lower of cost or market allowance $1,412 $1,502 $(1,069) $1,845
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APPENDIX A

PETsMART SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA(1)

Historical Statement of Operations Data:
Net sales

Gross profit
Operating eXpenses . .................
General and administrative Expenses . . .
Loss on disposal of Subsidiary.........
Merger and business Integration costs . .

Operating income
Interest income
Interest expense. ... ..........ovenn.

Income before equity loss in
PETsMART.com, income tax
Expense, minority interest, and
cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle

Equity loss in PETsMART.com

Net income (loss)(3)................

Earnings Per Share Data:

Income (loss) per share — basic before
cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle

Income (loss) per share — diluted before
cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle

Net income (loss) per share — basic

Net income (loss) per share — diluted ...

Weighted average number of Common
shares Outstanding — basic

Weighted average number of Common and
common equivalent Shares
Outstanding — diluted

Selected Operating Data:(7)
Stores open at end of Period
Average square footage(4) ............
Net sales per square foot(5)
Net sales growth . ...................
Increase in comparable store sales(6) ..

Selected Balance Sheet Data:(7)
Merchandise inventories . .............
Working capital .....................
Total assets
Total debt(8) .................... ...
Total stockholders’ equity.............
Current ratio ................coo....
Long-term debt-to-equity . ............
Total debt-to-capital

Fiscal Year Ended(2)

February 1, February 2, February 3, January 28, January 30,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share amounts and operating data)
$ 2,996,051 § 2695184 § 2,501,012 § 2224222 § 2,110,316
909,934 788,040 673,485 528,994 551,241
551,388 498,343 483,657 423,550 400,753
114,618 117,851 119,156 80,196 62,681
— — — — 45,669
243,928 171,846 70,672 25,248 42,138
3,358 2,803 2,007 2,769 2,862
(19,454) (20,836) (27,436) (23,385) (22,756)
227,832 153,813 45,243 4,632 22,244
— — — (33,109) (29,061)
$ 139,549 $ 885855 $ 39567 $ (30,904) $ (32,422)
$ 099 § 066 $ 035 % (0.28) % (0.28)
$ 095 0.63 $ 035 § (028) $ (0.28)
$ 099 § 0.66 § 035 § (0.28) $ (0.28)
$ 095 § 063 § 035 $  (028) $  (0.28)
141,641 134,148 112,006 111,351 114,940
147,255 141,682 114,067 111,351 114,940
643 583 560 533 434
14,817,856 13,943,338 13,482,074 13,234,699 12,075,561
$ 198.52 § 188.69 § 177.28  § 160.80 § 163.16
11.2% 7.8% 12.4% 5.4% 0.0%
7.0% 9.6% 6.5% 1.4% 4.6%
$ 309,140 § 257,090 $§ 271,342 § 322462 $ 377,298
$ 347,838 § 292947 § 200,642 § 195050 § 280,311
$ 1,376,695 $ 1,158,856 $§ 961,103 $ 782,147 $ 835390
$ 170,702 § 167,007 $§ 341,387 $ 253936 § 276,544
¢ 839,155 § 681,199 § 325806 § 280,579 $§ 314,424
2.02 2.02 1.73 1.83 2.18
20% 23% 101% 87% 84%
17% 20% 51% 48% 47%




(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7

(8)

Certain items have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

Fiscal 2001 consisted of 53 weeks; all other years reported consisted of 52 weeks.

Includes a $528,000 charge in fiscal 1999 for the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle,
net of income tax benefit. Fiscal year 2000 includes an allocation of losses for minority interest in
PETsMART.com of $300,000. Fiscal year 2001 includes an allocation of losses for minority interest in
PETSMART.com of $2,296,000.

Average square footage is the mathematical average of square footage at the beginning of the year and
square footage at the end of the year, and includes the square footage used by the veterinary hospitals.
Net sales per square foot are calculated by dividing net sales, excluding catalog and Internet sales, by
average square footage. Catalog and Internet sales for fiscal 2003, 2002, 2001, 2000, and 1999 were
$54,400,000, $64,216,000, $110,889,000, $96,042,000, and $106,403,000, respectively. Net sales per
square foot may be considered a “non-GAAP financial measure” as defined in Item 10(e) of
Regulation S-K. Management believes that this presentation provides useful information to investors
regarding the results of operations of its stores.

North American retail stores only, excludes catalog and Internet sales in all periods, and includes only
stores open at least 52 weeks. Fiscal 2001 data has been adjusted to reflect 52 weeks of the 53-week fiscal
year.

U.K. subsidiary was sold during fiscal 1999, and is excluded entirely from the related 1999 selected
operating and balance sheet data presented except for stockholders’ equity data.

Includes capital lease obligations.
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Transfer Agent and Registrar
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
PO. Box 64854

St. Paul, MN 55164-0854

wiow wellsfargo.com/com/shareowner_services

Independent Accountants
Deloitte & Touche LLP
2901 North Central Avenue
Suite 1200

Phoenix, AZ 85012

Stockholder Inquiries
PETsMART Investor Relations
19601 North 27th Avenue
Phoenix, AZ 85027

(623) 587-2025

investorrelations@ssg. petsmart.com

PETsMART Common Stock
The company's common stock is
traded on the NASDAQ National
Market under the symbol “PETM"







